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Chairman’s Statement
FREHLEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2009.

The global financial turmoil triggered by the US subprime crisis in 2008 has
had major impacts on economy around the world. As a result, the textile
industry was faced with unprecedented challenges during the year under
review. Despite the challenging environment, the Group continued to grow
and firmly established the Group as the leading manufacturer of customized
knitted fabrics in the textile industry.

Sustained Business Growth Despite Challenging

Environment

Despite the unfavorable market conditions, the Group enjoyed a solid
financial position during the 2009 Financial Year and continued to maintain
a satisfactory performance with revenue reaching HK$4,734.8 million for the
2009 Financial Year, representing an increase of 10.6% over the previous
year.

During the 2009 Financial Year, surging commodity prices and appreciation of
Renminbi had led to an increase in production costs. With proven diversified
business model and stringent cost management, the Group managed to
mitigate the impact. Gross profit for the year and profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company dropped slightly to HK$687.0 million and
HK$376.5 million respectively. Earnings per share was HK$0.26. (2008:
HK$0.28)

The Group further improved cash and working capital management, and
managed capital expenditure prudently in accordance with market demand.
As a result, the Group’s net cash inflow before financing activities increased
117.1% to HK$655.5 million, further strengthening its financial position and
balance sheet.

In view of the Group’s positive business performance and sound financial
conditions, the Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK 12.0 cents per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK 3.0 cents
per share, total dividend for the 2009 Financial Year amounted to HK 15.0
cents per share.
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Chairman’s Statement
FRHLEE

Demonstrated Resilience and Achieved Milestones
The 2009 Financial Year was a year of both opportunities and challenges
for the textiles industry. A plunging world economy had posed serious
challenges for exports during the year under review. Consumer confidence
was adversely impacted by the unprecedented global financial crisis which
led to a slowdown in purchase orders. At the same time, manufacturers in
China, including the Group, experienced a volatile operating environment
partly driven by surging raw material and overhead costs. The appreciation
of Renminbi and tighter environmental laws also exerted pressure on the
industry and helped speed up industry consolidation. Nevertheless, riding
on the Group’s well-established environmental-conscious infrastructure
and equipment, enhanced operational efficiency and strategic initiatives
together with its sound financial position, the Group was able to maintain
its core competencies and increased its market share despite the
challenging environment. These core competencies also further enhanced
competitiveness and strengthened the Group’s relationships with international
apparel brand owners.

During the 2009 Financial Year, sales volume of the Group increased 1.4%
to 157.2 million pounds and the Group has successfully strengthened its
foothold in the Asian markets and diversified the geographical reach to reduce
reliance on the US market. Sales to Japan and China increased satisfactorily
during this financial year and the Group will also continue to dedicate effort in
expanding into China to capture the strong growth in its domestic market. In
November 2008, the Group also took the initiative to diversify its production
base to Bangladesh by establishing a joint venture with three strategic
partners including the holding company of UNIQLO Japan. Apart from offering
lower production costs, the Bangladesh project would enable the Group to
further expand into the Japan and EU markets and capture new opportunities
as there are no tariffs and quota restrictions in Japan and Europe for textiles
products imported from Bangladesh.

Expansion works at the Sri Lanka plant were completed in 2008, contributing
significantly to the business growth of the Group during the 2009 Financial
Year.

In line with its business strategy, the Group also continued to maintain high
standards in environmental protection and sustainability initiatives and has
been recognized by government agencies. In May 2009, its Panyu plant was
accredited as Environmentally Trustworthy Enterprise — Green Label GR{R
=1 iff\ﬁé‘affﬁi\) in the China Environmental Labelling Programme (/1 B3&
EiZ 551 2l) launched by National Environmental Protection Bureau (B iR 1R
42 J2). The Group has also participated in the Cleaner Production Partnership
Programmes organized by Hong Kong Productivity Council. In April 2009, the
Panyu plant was awarded as Cleaner Production Corporation (24 E 1
%) by Economic and Trade Commission of Guangdong Province (/& 5 & 4%
EE 5% 8&) and Guangdong Bureau of Science and Technology (EXRA
FIERITEE) in recognition of the Group’s achievement on maintaining clean
production first-class standards (&2 4 & — # BT 1512).
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHLEE

Continue to Maintain Core Competencies to
Capture Opportunities

Looking ahead, the operating environment will remain tough and industry
consolidation will continue. The Group believes textiles manufacturers with
a solid business foundation and competitive advantages will benefit from
the consolidation. The Group, with its strong manufacturing capabilities,
well-established and environmentally-conscious infrastructure, and unique
offering of value-added products and service, is well positioned to capture
opportunities and increase market share, thereby strengthening and
consolidating its leading market position.

Notwithstanding the challenges that lie ahead, the Group will stay on track
and continue to execute its stated strategy. Moreover, the Group will seek to
further expand its production volume and continue to focus on maintaining its
competitiveness by pursuing market diversification, implementing technology
upgrades and enhancing operational efficiency. At the same time, the Group
will closely monitor the changes in the macroeconomic environment and
adjust its business strategy accordingly if necessary.

The future holds considerable opportunities for Pacific Textiles. Track record
of the Group has demonstrated the resilience and strength of the strategy
and diversified business platform. Through its increased capabilities, | am
confident that Pacific Textiles will be able to deliver more encouraging returns
and increase value further for our shareholders in the times ahead.

I would like to thank our shareholders for their continuing support. | also would

like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to our management and
staff for their contribution and hard work during this challenging period.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RE DA

Business Review

Overview

The 2009 Financial Year was a period of challenges and opportunities for the
Group and the industry. The subprime crisis had struck the global economy
and resulted in poor consumption sentiment hence reducing market demand,
posing challenges to the industry. On the other hand, it accelerated industry
consolidation, providing enormous expansion opportunities to strong industry
players. In spite of the challenging and uncertain operating environment, the
Group maintained growth in sales volume and selling price during the year
under review.

Despite the weakened demand, rapid industry consolidation had enabled
stronger players to increase market share. As a result, sales volume of the
Group for the year under review increased 1.4% to 157.2 million pounds. The
Group achieved a revenue of HK$4,734.8 million for the year under review,
representing an increase of 10.6% as compared to the previous financial
year. In order to reduce reliance on the U.S. market, the Group diversified its
geographic market reach to Japan and China. During the year, the Group
also further strengthened its presence in the EU market.

During the 2009 Financial Year, rising crude oil and commodity prices had
driven higher the costs of yarns, fuel, dyestuff and other raw materials,
resulting in higher production costs. Due to a combination of inflationary
pressure and appreciation of Renminbi, cost of sales as a percentage of
revenue rose to 85.5% from 83.7% last year. As a result, the Group’s gross
profit and profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company dropped
slightly to HK$687.0 million and HK$376.5 million respectively. Gross
profit margin and net profit margin were 14.5% and 8.0% respectively. The
management of the Group strived to mitigate impacts through improving
operational efficiency, upgrading production facilities and adjusting selling
prices. Furthermore, quality products and well-established client relationships
had allowed the Group to increase its blended average selling price (“ASP”)
by about 9.1% to HK$30.1 per pound (2008: HK$27.6 per pound), alleviating
the magnitude brought about by higher costs.

The Group’s other revenue was HK$58.5 million (2008: HK$57.8 million) for
the 2009 Financial Year, representing an increase of 1.2%. Other revenue
comprised mainly sub-contracting income and sales of residual materials.

Other net gains, mainly fair value gains from derivative financial instruments
and foreign exchange difference, decreased by 98% to HK$1 million (2008:
HK$50.7 million). The Group entered forward contracts to hedge against
currency fluctuations of US dollar and Renminbi. In view of the volatile financial
market, the Group reduced its exposure to those financial instruments during
the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEET WD

Business Review continued)

Overview (Continued)

Distribution and selling expenses dropped 17.2% to HK$149.9 million (2008:
HK$181.0 million). The notable decrease was mainly due to a significant
amount of customer claims resulting from teething problems caused by the
new production equipment in the previous financial year. Related equipment
installation has been completed and the management believes the upgraded
facilities will help to improve the operational efficiency and competitiveness of
the Group in the long run.

During the year, general and administrative expenses were HK$170.6 million
(2008: HK$170.9 million), representing a slight decrease of HK$0.3 million or
0.2%. The Group maintained an efficient cost structure and will continue to
exercise a tight control on costs. For the 2009 Financial Year, operating profit
was HK$426.1 million (2008: HK$453.5 million), representing a decrease of
6.0%.

Customers and Products

Despite the adverse operating environment and poor consumption sentiment,
the weakened global economies had triggered rapid industry consolidation
and washed out less competitive players in the industry as orders were
switched to the stronger players. As a result, sales volume of the Group
increased 1.4% to 157.2 million pounds compared to 155 million pounds last
year.

On the other hand, the capability to produce value-added and complex fabric
enabled the Group to transfer part of the cost increment to the customers,
leading to a 9.1% increase in ASP to HK$30.1 per pound (2008: HK$27.6
per pound), mitigating the effect of the higher costs. Capabilities to provide
customized fabrics that suit client’s specific needs are one of the key
strengths of the Group securing its leading position in the market.

The Group has developed close and long-standing relationships with major
brand owners, including Calvin Klein, Liz Claiborne, Maidenform, Marks &
Spencer, Triumph, UNIQLO, VF Intimates and Victoria’s Secret, as well as
well-known Chinese brands such as ANTA Sports and Aimer, which allows
the Group to enjoy stable purchase orders. The top five customers and brand
owners accounted for approximately 39.5% and 41.1% respectively of the
Group’s total revenue during the year under review.

In response to weakened demand in the US, the Group has been proactively
diversifying its geographical market reach with a focus on China and Japan
and has made encouraging progress in expanding its sales to these markets.
Although it is still at a start-up phase in China, the Group will continue to
invest in the country as it is now one of the key markets for growth thanks
to its rising domestic brands and their growing appetite for quality fabrics.
Moreover, when the Group’s plant in Bangladesh commences operation in
2011, sales to Japan and EU markets are expected to increase further as
there are no tariffs and quota restrictions in Japan and Europe for goods from
Bangladesh.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RE DA

Business Review continued)

Production and Capacity Expansion

During the year, the Group took several strategic moves to expand its
production capacity and enhance its operation.

Bangladesh plant

In November 2008, the Company established a joint venture in Singapore
with Fast Retailing Co., Ltd., the holding company of UNIQLO Japan, Crystal
International Limited and Trendit Corporation, to jointly set up fabric and
garment production facilities in Bangladesh. It is expected that the facilities
will commence operation by 2011. This strategic move enables the Group
to further expand its presence in the Japan and EU markets as there are
no tariffs or quota restrictions on goods exported to EU and Japan from
Bangladesh, and production costs are relatively low in the country.

Sri Lanka plant
Expansion works at the Sri Lanka plant were completed last financial year.
Apart from enhancing the operational efficiency and competitiveness, the
expansion contributed a significant part of the growth in volume for the Group
during the year.

Panyu plant

During the year under review, the Group completed the improvement
works at the production plant in Panyu. Critical supporting facilities such as
power plant, water treatment facilities and a new water recycling plant were
upgraded or installed. The Group carried out upgrades on equipment such
as dyeing machines, which are now more cost effective. The Group also
equipped the power plant with a desulfurizer and undertook an anti-dust
process by deploying infrastructure that is more environmentally friendly.

The Group endeavors to be an environmentally friendly producer and has
participated in the Cleaner Production Partnership Programmes organized by
Hong Kong Productivity Council. In May 2009, its Panyu plant was accredited
as Environmentally Trustworthy Enterprise — Green Label (BR{RM{5 0¥ — 4%
F21Z7R) in the China Environmental Labelling Programme (2 B3R ZIE 555

£l) launched by National Environmental Protection Bureau (BEIZRER{R42/3). In
April 2009, the Panyu plant was also among the first group of companies to
receive the Cleaner Production Corporation (&24 E 1) recognition from
the Economic and Trade Commission of Guangdong Province (BR & &EE
5% 8 &) and Guangdong Bureau of Science and Technology (EHR & RI£
F1i7EE). This is a recognition to the Group’s dedicated efforts to maintain and
promote the ongoing adoption of clean production first-class standards (/&2

BB — R R).

All these years, the Group has been striving to become a responsible
corporate and endeavors to contribute to the sustainability of the
environment. These kinds of recognition serve as a testament to the Group’s
high standards in energy saving and emission reduction during production.
By adopting more cost effective and environmentally friendly production
technology, the management believes that the Group is able to enhance its
cost competitiveness in the long run. The adoption of cleaner production
technology has also enhanced the Group’s brand image among its clients,
who are mostly international brands that prefer to deal with ethical and
environmentally responsible corporations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEET WD

Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 31 March 2009, the Group's bank and cash equivalents and time
deposits totalled HK$1,431.7 million (2008: HK$1,175.5 million), including
HK$950.6 million, the equivalent of HK$296.9 million in US$, the equivalent of
HK$141.8 million in Renminbi and the equivalent of HK$42.4 million in other
currencies. The bank and cash balances and time deposits are to finance the
Group’s working capital and capital expenditure plans. The loans, with the
exception of a syndicated loan, are generally short-term, principally ranging
from two weeks to three months, and are denominated mainly in Hong Kong
and US dollars.

For the 2009 Financial Year, the Group’s total assets amounted to
HK$4,385.5 million (2008: 4,403.0 million), representing an decrease of
0.4%. Non-current assets and current assets were HK$1,572.2 million and
HK$2,813.3 million respectively. The above assets were financed by current
liabilities of HK$1,098.8 million, non-current liabilities of HK$125.4 million,
minority interests of HK$50.3 million and equity attributable to shareholders
of HK$3,111.0 million. The current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of
current assets over current liabilities) was 2.6 (2008: 2.5). The gearing ratio,
being the ratio of total debts (including current and non-current borrowings
and finance lease obligations) to total assets, was 9.2% (2008: 15.2%). Such
decrease was mainly attributable to the reduction in borrowings and an
increased level of cash and bank balances resulting from positive operating
cash flow. As at 31 March 2009, the Group was in a net cash position of
HK$1,021.3 million (31 March 2008: HK$504.4 million).

The Group adopted prudent measures and reviewed its capital expenditure
needs in response to the market demand. During the year under review, total
capital expenditure declined 53.6% to HK$211.8 million (2008: HK$456.9
million), which was mainly used to purchase plant and machinery, and on
construction projects of the Panyu plant and others.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollars and Renminbi. The
Group manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. The Group will hedge against the
exposure and reduce the risk involved when appropriate.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s bank loans of HK$70.9 million (2008:
HK$98.3 million) were secured by certain property, plant and equipment with
a carrying amount of HK$92.9 million (2008: HK$94.8 million) and inventories
with net realizable value of HK$78.0 million (2008: HK$78.0 million).
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Financial Review (continued)

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had a total of 7,373 full-time employees (2008:
7,962), 6,097 of whom were based in China, 1,130 in Sri Lanka, 134 in Hong
Kong and 12 in other regions. There is no significant change in the Group’s
remuneration policy. The Group’s remuneration package for its employees
includes salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement benefits, based on
employee’s performance, skills and knowledge. The Group will continue to
provide trainings regularly and to offer competitive remuneration packages to
its staff. The Group also provides additional benefits to its employees, such as
subsidized accommodation and meals for workers at the production facilities,
and accident and medical insurance.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme. Pursuant to the scheme, the
Company granted options to the eligible employees. The amortised fair value
of share options granted totalled approximately HK$8.9 million was charged
to the income statement for the 2009 Financial Year. (2008: HK$6.5 million).

Dividends

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK 12 cents (2008: HK
7.5 cents) per share for the 2009 Financial Year. Together with the interim
dividend of HK 3 cents (2008: HK6.5 cents) per share, the total dividend
for the 2009 Financial Year amount to HK 15 cents (2008: HK14 cents) per
share. The final dividend, if approved by shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM, will be paid in September 2009.

Outlook and Prospect

While the financial markets are still volatile and the outlook of the textile
industry remains uncertain in the short run, there are signs that the global
economy is back on the road to recovery, thanks to the stimulus measures
implemented by governments around the world. The Group believes the
present consolidation in the industry provides expansion opportunities to
strong and established industry players who are competitive and resilient.
Riding on this opportunity, the Group will seek to increase its market share
and further consolidate its leading position in the industry.

The Group imposed a stringent cash and working capital management
process during the year and has preserved sufficient capital for future
development. In the year ahead, the Group will continue to purchase new
machinery and upgrade the facilities where appropriate, with a view to
expanding its production capacity as well as improving operational efficiency.
The expansion will help lay a more solid foundation for the long term
development and enable the Group to take advantage of opportunities when
the market recovers. When the Bangladesh plant commences operation in
2011, the Group will be able to further expand its market reach and enlarge its
share of the market. Moreover, the Group will continue to invest its production
facilities in order to promote clean production, and maintain sustainable
business development. Through enhanced capabilities, the management is
confident that the Group will be able to deliver more encouraging results and
increase value further for its shareholders in the times ahead.
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Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 59, is an executive Director and Chairman and a
founder of the Group. Mr. Wan is responsible for production of the products
and the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business strategies
of the Group. Mr. Wan has over 36 years of experience in the textile industry.
He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemical Engineering from
Taiwan National Cheng Kung University. Mr. Wan joined the Group in 1997
and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. TSANG Kang Po, aged 58, is an executive Director and the vice
Chairman and a founder of the Group. Mr. Tsang is responsible for sales
and marketing and the formulation of the overall corporate direction and
business strategies for the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 30 years of experience
in the textile industry. He is the vice chairman of Hong Kong Intimate Apparel
Industries’ Association. Mr. Tsang obtained a MBA degree from The Open
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Science in Business Economics
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang joined the Group
in 1997 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAM Wing Tak, aged 58, is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Lam is responsible for sales and
marketing and the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies for the Group. Mr. Lam has over 34 years of experience in the
textile industry. Mr. Lam obtained a MBA degree from The University
of Macau and a Bachelor of Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is a member of Board of Trustee of New Asia
College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam joined the Group
in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAM King Man, aged 53, is an executive Director. Dr. Lam is responsible
for overseeing manufacturing and research and development. Dr. Lam has
over 27 years of experience in the textile, garment, dyeing and finishing
industry. Dr. Lam obtained a Ph.D. degree from the Postgraduate School
of Colour Chemistry and Colour Technology at the University of Bradford,
United Kingdom and a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He is a Chartered Colourist and a Fellow of The Society of Dyers
and Colourists, United Kingdom. Dr. Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was
appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Group.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung, aged 73, is a non-executive Director and a founder
of the Group. Mr. Choi co-founded the Group in 1997 and has been the
chairman of the Group since its inception until 2005. Mr. Choi is the emeritus
chairman of the Company and is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. He has approximately 41 years of experience in the textile industry.
Mr. Choi was educated in the 38 T K& - #2 X (School of Architecture,
South China University of Technology) and is a Honorary Professor of the
University. He is also a Honorary Citizen of Guangzhou City and Jiangmen
City. Mr. Choi was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. IP Ping Im, aged 72, is a non-executive Director. He is a co-founder and
senior partner of the Group. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Ip has over 32 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Ip
was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James, aged 50, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Ho
is a vice president of Capital International, Inc., responsible for private equity
in Asia. Prior to joining Capital International, Inc. in 1996, Mr. Ho was a vice
president of global equity investments at the Bank of America in Hong Kong.
Mr. Ho is a director of China Digital TV Holding Co. Limited, a New York
Stock Exchange listed company since November 2006 and was a director of
ON*Media Corporation, a Korea listed company, from June 2000 to March
2007. He received a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the National Taiwan
University and an MBA from the Wharton School of Business at the University
of Pennsylvania. Mr. Ho was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 61, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lau has over
32 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma
in Textile Technology from the Hong Kong Technical College. He is a member
of the General Committee of Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lau
was appointed as a non-executive Director in 2007. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Vivek Kalra, aged 45, alternate Director to Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James,
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Kalra is a Vice President of
Capital International, Inc., responsible for private equity business in Asia,
including India. Prior to joining Capital International, Inc. in 1999, Mr. Kalra
worked for McKinsey & Company, Inc. in New York and India. Mr. Kalra
holds directorship in Manipal Universal Learning Private Limited, India
since September 2006. Mr. Kalra previously held directorships in Mindtree
Consulting Limited, India from August 2001 to January 2008 and Deccan
Aviation Limited (now known as Kingfisher Airlines Limited) from March 2005
to July 2007, both companies are listed on the National Stock Exchange of
India. He holds an MBA from the Stanford Graduate School of Business, USA
and a Bachelor of Technology degree in Electrical Engineering from the Indian
Institute of Technology in Bombay, India. Mr. Kalra was appointed as an
alternate Director in 2008.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 57, is an independent non-
executive Director. He is currently the executive chairman of Café de Coral
Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company which he joined in 1984,
and has considerable experience in planning and management. Mr. Chan
is also an independent non-executive director of Starlite Holdings Limited
since 1993 and Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited since 2006 and a
non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings Limited in 2007, all three
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master’s degree in City Planning from
the University of Manitoba, Canada and an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration from Southern California University for Professional
Studies, U.S.A. He is currently an executive committee member of the
Hong Kong Retail Management Association, general committee member
of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, elected member of the Quality
Tourism Services Association, a full member of the Canadian and the Hong
Kong Institute of Planners, a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing,
Honorary President of Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association and the Honorary
Adviser of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. He is currently the chairman
of Business Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management
Association and a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Ng has over 22 years of senior management experience in the
telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng is currently the non-executive
independent director of HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong
listed company and director and member of the executive committee for
Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited, a Thailand listed company.
He was the chief executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the
chief executive officer of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
a Hong Kong listed company and the President of PCCW Mobility Services
Limited. Mr. Ng is the Honorary Advisor of the Communications Association
of Hong Kong and was a member of the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory
Committee (D21SAC). Mr. Ng graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and Administration. Mr. Ng was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Sze has senior management experience in the private and
investment banking industry serving high net worth clients and institutions. He
was the managing director, head of investment of Citi Wealth Management for
Asia Pacific region, the chief executive officer of Asia-Pacific for International
Private Bank, Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the private clients
division at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master
of Business from the University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA
Australia. Mr. Sze was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in 2007.
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Senior Management

Mr. LAM Hing Chau Leon, aged 51, joined the Group in 2005 and is the
chief financial officer. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences
from the University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lam also holds Master’s degrees in Business Administration,
Information Systems, Applied Finance and Electronic Commerce. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the executive director, vice president and chief
financial officer of CK Life Sciences Int’l (Holdings) Inc., a company listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. PANG Ping Hung, aged 58, joined the Group in 2005 and is the general
manager, responsible for the printing and finishing division of the Group. Mr.
Pang has over 32 years of experience in the textile industry. He is the director
of a subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. GOONETILLEKE Rohan, aged 56, is the managing director of Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company since June
2008. Mr. Goonetilleke holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Portsmouth, United Kingdom. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the managing director of Linea Clothing (Private)
Limited.

Mr. Ng Ching Wa, Daniel, aged 44, joined the Group in 2009 and is the
Head of Management Information System responsible for the managing
the information system of the Group. Mr. Ng holds Master’s degrees in
Accounting, IT Management and Finance. He is a Certified SAP Consultant,
Certified Information System Auditor and full member of Hong Kong
Computer Society.

Mr. WU Tai Cheung, aged 51, joined the Group in 2006 and is the company
secretary and head of internal audit. Mr. Wu has over 24 years of experience
in the field of financials, auditing, accounting and secretarial matters. He
holds an MBA and is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.
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Directors’ Report
EERRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for 2009
Financial Year.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textiles products. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Results and Dividends
The results of the Group for the 2009 Financial Year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 41 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of 3 cents (2008: HK 6.5 cents) per share was paid
on 22 January 2009 to shareholders. The Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK 12 cents (2008: HK 7.5 cents) per share to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members at the close
of business on 28 August 2009.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from 25 August 2009 to 28 August
2009 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares can be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited not later than 4:30 p.m. on 24 August 2009. Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited is located at Shops 1712-1716, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 110 of this annual
report.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
the 2009 Financial Year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
of the Company

During the 2009 Financial Year, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the law of
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated
under which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.
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Reserves
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2009
Financial Year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

In addition to the retained earnings of the Company, the share premium
and capital reserves of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 March 2009, the sum of the share premium, the capital reserve, share-
based reserve and the retained earnings of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,092,854,000 (2008: HK$1,882,242,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Expenditure of approximately HK$211,835,000 (2008: HK$456,948,000) was
incurred during the 2009 Financial Year primarily to expand the production
capacity of the Group.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

Principal Subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2009 are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

Donations
During the 2009 Financial Year, the Group made charitable and other
donation totalling approximately HK$126,000 (2008: HK$1,567,000).

Capitalised Interests
During the 2009 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the 2009 Financial Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 39.5% of the Group’s total sales and the
percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer amounted
to approximately 12.5%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 32.7% of the total purchases and the
percentage of purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier amounted
to approximately 16.5%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) had any interests in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers noted above.
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors of the Company during the 2009 Financial Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. LAM King Man

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung

Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Mr. Vivek KALRA (appointed on 19 May 2008)
(Alternate Director to Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
Accordingly, Mr. Lam Wing Tak, Mr. Ip Ping Im, Mr. Lau Yiu Tong and Mr. Ng
Ching Wah will retire by rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors.

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of two years with effect from 1 April 2007. Each
service agreement will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by
giving to the other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors had
been appointed for an initial term of two years on the terms and conditions
effective from 1 May 2007 and subsequently the term of the appointment has
been extended for a further two years. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules.

Profile of the above Directors are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this annual
report.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares

and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2009, the interests and/or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

EERARQARDAEBER G 2
wmRARE
R2009F3HA31H » EFRARATTHAEHNA
NEINEAEEE (FERBESHRHAEEIEXV
OBk - MR RiEHF - R EIREES
RHAEGGIEXVEIET RESH B AE AN A 7 N
QAT R SRAR (BEESIREES R SE
GO 2 HEEEIFIR BEERNERIAR) + K
BIEES X A EEHIE35215 B B R MRIE X 158
FHRENELMEBRE MR EFMARES
EITEHFR HMIRESTRANS AR R MR A
R R SURR T

RRABRMDZHR

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

BERTALARNEE RERME

Approximate

percentage of

Name of issued share

Director/ Personal Family Corporate Trust capital of

Chief Executive Note interests interests interests interests Total  the Company

RAEAF

BRITRA

S THAREE i3 fAARER EdET EEER EetrER By ZHNELH

Choi Kin Chung 1 - - - 171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%
g@gh

Ip Ping Im 2 - 1,800,000 400,940,000 - 402,740,000 28.11%
30

Lam King Man 3 137,000 - 30,000,000 - 30,137,000 2.10%
MEX

Lam Wing Tak 4 5,008,000 200,000 100,000,000 - 105,208,000 7.34%
MEE

Lau Yiu Tong 51,766,000 - - - 51,766,000 3.61%
ZR%E

Tsang Kang Po 5 1,676,000 - 100,000,000 - 101,676,000 7.10%
BER

Wan Wai Loi 6 3,507,000 820,000 100,350,000 - 104,677,000 7.30%
FER
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continueq)

Notes:

1. These Shares are directly held by Silver Bay International Holdings Limited, whose
issued share capital is wholly-owned by Trustcorp Limited, the trustee of the
Cypress Pacific Trust, a discretionary trust. For the purposes of the SFO, Mr. Choi
Kin Chung is the founder of the Cypress Pacific Trust.

2. These Shares are directly held by Far East Asia Limited, whose issued share
capital is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im.

3. These Shares are directly held by Effective Approach Technology Limited, whose
issued share capital is 50% owned by Dr. Lam King Man and 50% owned by the
spouse of Dr. Lam King Man. Those Shares under personal interests are held
jointly by Dr. Lam King Man and his spouse.

4, These Shares are directly held by Fifth Element Enterprises Limited, whose issued
share capital is 75% owned by Mr. Lam Wing Tak and 25% owned by the spouse
of Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

5. These Shares are directly held by Top Strong Holdings Limited, whose issued
share capital is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by the
spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

6. These Shares are directly held by Hollywood Pacific Limited, whose issued capital is
25% owned by Mr. Wan Wai Loi and 25% owned by the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai
Loi.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2009, had any interests and/or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

At no time during the 2009 Financial Year were the rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any
directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares
So far as any Director or the chief executive of the Company is aware, as

at the 31 March 2009, the following persons (not being Directors or chief

executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was (directly
or indirectly) interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of the share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

Name of
substantial shareholder Note
IZRREME Mzt
Chiu Bo Lan 1
HEH

2
Hollywood Pacific Limited 1
Lam Wai Yee
HEE

3
Far East Asia Limited 4
Wong Bik Ha
BEE

5

6
Fifth Element Enterprises Limited 5
Law Oi Mui 7
BEN
Trustcorp Limited 8

Nature of interest

iy

Rt

\

Beneficial owner

BHERA

Interest of a controlled corporation
REFEHER 2 EH

Interest of spouse

[

Beneficial owner

BEEEAA

Beneficial owner
EHERA
Interest of spouse
i £

Beneficial owner

BESBEAA

Beneficial owner

BREEA

Interest of a controlled corporation
RUFEHER 2 #E

Interest of spouse

Eiff i

Beneficial owner
BREBA
Interest of spouse

[

Trustee

A

FERRRZA QTR0 F 48 BE R 2
ZRERRRE

AR EFRAR I THRABEFTAZE - 720094
SAB1H " L TTATGEESHARRTTHAE )R
RARBMSBERG P HBBREEF RS
B SEXVER B2 K 35 BB AR TE M AN B B8 My e 2
AR - EESEEEE WA ER A TS
ATRAREETAEMEERRINBREAE &
Z BRI AT E10%3 A F SRR

RABRMD TR
Approximate
percentage
interest of
issued share
Number of Aggregate capital of
issued Shares long position the Company
RADFAEET
ARRRMDEE HREY  RAZEHNESH
820,000 104,677,000 7.30%
100,350,000
3,507,000
100,350,000 100,350,000 7.00%
1,800,000 402,740,000 28.11%
400,940,000
400,940,000 400,940,000 27.98%
200,000 105,208,000 7.34%
100,000,000
5,008,000
100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%
171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%
171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

FERERNAARD T IR0 F1AHEE IR 9
ZERRRE @)
RABRP 2HFE (#)

Approximate

percentage

interest of

issued share

Number of Aggregate capital of

issued Shares long position the Company

RAXREET

RRARHEE HEBH  REAZHRESL

171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%

100,000,000 101,676,000 7.10%

1,676,000

100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%

123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%

123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%

123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%

123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%

119,620,100 119,620,100 8.35%

119,620,100 119,620,100 8.35%
st -

Name of
substantial shareholder Note Nature of interest
TERRER Vi3 RHME
Silver Bay International 8 Beneficial owner
Holdings Limited EREEA
Wong Mei Ling 9 Interest of a controlled corporation
EER REREHER 2B
10 Interest of spouse
[
Top Strong Holdings Limited 9 Beneficial owner
BHEERA
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. Interest of a controlled corporation
REFEHER 2 #E
Capital Group International, Inc. Interest of a controlled corporation
REREHER 2B
Capital International, Inc. Interest of a controlled corporation
REREHER <R
11 Investment manager
REKE
Capital International 11 Interest of a controlled corporation
Investments IV, LLC REREHER 2R
Capital International 11 Interest of a controlled corporation
Investments IV, L.P. REREHEE 2R
Capital International Private 11 Beneficial owner
Equity Fund IV, L.P. BREEA
Notes:
1. Hollywood Pacific Limited is 25% owned by Mr. Wan Wai Loi and 25% owned
by Ms. Chiu Bo Lan, the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.
2. Ms. Chiu Bo Lan is the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi, a Director.
3. Ms. Lam Wai Yee is the spouse of Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.
4, Far East Asia Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.
5. Fifth Element Enterprises Limited is 75% owned by Mr. Lam Wing Tak and

25% owned by Ms. Wong Bik Ha, the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares (continueq)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

6. Ms. Wong Bik Ha is the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, a Director.
7. Ms. Law Oi Mui is the spouse of Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director.
8. Silver Bay International Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Trustcorp Limited,

the trustee of the Cypress Pacific Trust, a discretionary trust. For the purposes
of the SFO, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director, is the founder of the Cypress
Pacific Trust.

9. Top Strong Holdings Limited is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50%
owned by Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

10. Ms. Wong Mei Ling is the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po, a Director.

11. Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. is a private equity fund
managed by Capital International, Inc. Capital International Investments 1V,
L.P. is the general partner of Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P.
The general partner of Capital International Investments IV, L.P. is Capital
International Investments IV, LLC, which is also the general partner of CGPE
IV L.P., an employee securities fund formed to invest side-by-side with Capital
International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. Capital International, Inc. is the
managing member of Capital International Investments IV, LLC.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of any other
member in the Group

i%%%%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ
ZERRKE @

RANBRP 2R (&)

Wizt : ()

6. BEBEXLIRESIMEEELEZES -
7. BEBLI/ERHEEPERLEZERS-

8. Silver Bay International Holdings Limited
Trustcorp Limited2&#4 ' Trustcorp Limited
A BE{Z5ECypress Pacific TrustZE7EA © BLE
FLHERGIME - EEEREFRLLEACypress
Pacific TrustZ BI#A °

9. BHELTAERHEBSEERZTHAIMATop
Strong Holdings Limited 2 50% &% °

10. EBEXRRIREFGHENEEZERS -

11.  Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P.J)
fiCapital International, Inc. B 2 FLEFHFESD ©
Capital International Investments IV, L.P./&Capital
International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P.Z E&&
# A ° Capital International Investments IV, L.P.2
WA F A BCapital International Investments
IV, LLC * Z R AMACGPE IV, LP.Z E@mE R
A°CGPEIVLP.REEZEFES  KIZZEH
A EiCapital International Private Equity Fund IV,
L.P. H£[F&E - Capital International, Inc.&Capital
International Investments IV, LLCZ E#K B A 7]

RASBERHEMEKE AT 2R KEE
BB

Approximate

Name of percentage
Name of member substantial Nature Number of of issued
of the Group shareholder Note of interest issued shares share capital
\ | WAL R
AEEREARAR TERRER it RRME RH#E BHRDE
Textured Jersey Lanka Brandix Lanka Limited 1 Beneficial owner 76,666,992 40%
(Private) Limited BREEA
Note: Hist -
1. Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited is owned as to 60% by Pacific Textured 1. Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. K2 Brandix

Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and 40% by
Brandix Lanka Limited.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, as at 31 March 2009, no other person had an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

Lanka Limited7 54 A Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited 60% K 40% # % -+ Pacific
Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. AR AT Z 2 &
MEAR -

Bp ESCRTIREEE SN - BAA R GMERZE BRI TEAR
FHFTHE - 200963 A318 « EE M A LA
NEIBD SRR () P A ERIEE S RIS K
BIEXVELFE2 R 3D BRI MANA B FE 2 B a ok
KB NERXEEREWNTARBBRA TR
AEBITAKERRIBREAS FIREZ T(ATER
AR ARTEEIZE 0% A E 2 RERER R ©
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the 2009 Financial Year was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

There was no contract of significance, to which the Company, or its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 2009 Financial Year
or at any time during the 2009 Financial Year.

Competing Interest and Non-compete Undertaking
None of Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business
which causes or may cause any significant competition with the business of
the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or
may have with the Group.

Share Option Scheme
Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholder of the Company passed on
27 April 2007, the Company adopted a Share Option Scheme.

A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme
1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company with a flexible means of retaining, incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits
to Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph 2 below).

2. Participants
The Board may grant options to any “Eligible Person”, namely an
employee, director or non-executive director (including INED) of
any Member of the Group.

“Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding
company, subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other
companies or associated companies of the Company which the
Board determines will be subject to the Share Option Scheme.

3. Maximum number of Shares
The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of Listing (the “Listing Date”), representing
143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.
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Share Option Scheme continued)
A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
4. Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each Eligible Person (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue at the date of grant of the option.

5. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option
Scheme
(@)  General vesting period
The general vesting period for options granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless
the Board specifies a different vesting period under the terms
of the offer. The option period will not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested
and any performance conditions or targets set by the Board
have been met.

(b)  Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years
from the Listing Date.

6. Exercise price and payment on grant
(@)  Exercise price
The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be the price determined by the Board and
notified to the option holder which shall not be less than the
higher of:

()  the average closing price of the Shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the option as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets;

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet of the Shares on the
date of grant of the option; and

(i) ~ the nominal value of the Shares.

(b)  Payment on grant
Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of
an option granted to them.

7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will terminate automatically at midnight
on the day immediately before the 10th anniversary of the Listing
Date.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

B.

Options granted by the Company

As at 31 March 2009, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
20,790,000 Shares granted to eligible full-time employees pursuant to
the terms of the Share Option Scheme remained outstanding, details of
which were as follows:

BRET Sl
B. AARDEHZBRE

R2009F3A31H + IRIEBARHEST 8] 2 153K
RTAER2EEE NREA 20,790,000
AN BIRRD 7 BERRAE M AR T T - BRFFS
s

Number of share options

BREHE

Date of grant Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Outstanding
as at during during during during as at
1 April 2008 the period the period the period the period 31 March 2009
#2008F4A1H 120093A31H

BB HATE  REERERE  REERTE RERRXM REBREH fe R AT
18 July 2007 22,230,000 - - 1,440,000 - 20,790,000

2007%7R18H

The fair value of options granted is approximately at an average of
HK$1.222 per share on the basis of binominal model (the “Model”). The
significant inputs into the Model were the closing price of the Share of
the Company at the date of grant of HK$4.8 per share, annual risk-
free interest rate of approximately 4.8%, an expected option life of
approximate 6 years, expected volatility of 32% and annual dividend
yield of 4%. The amortised fair value of share options for the year ended
31 March 2009 amounting to approximately HK$8.9 million (2008:
HK$6.5 million) was charged to the income statement.

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded
options that are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility.
Since the Company’s share options have characteristics significantly
different from those of traded options, and because change in the
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair
value of the share options.

The options are exercisable from 18 July 2010 to 17 July 2017 (both
days inclusive) up to 100% of the options at an exercise price of
HK$5.04 per share and shall expire on 18 July 2017. The closing price
of the share of the Company immediately before the date of grant was
HK$4.86 per share.

No option had been granted to the Directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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Connected Transactions
The related party transactions set out in note 33 to the financial statements
also constitute continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

During the 2009 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions not exempted under the Listing Rule 14A.33:

A. Continuing Connected Transaction

O

@

Sale of products to Bandix group and its associates

Sale of knitted fabric to Brandix together with its subsidiaries
(“Brandix Group”) and its associate pursuant to a sale of products
master agreement (the “Brandix Sale of Products Master
Agreement”) dated 27 August 2007 between the Company and
Brandix Group. Details of the Brandix Sale of Products Master
Agreement are set out in the circular of the Company dated 14
September 2007 (the “Circular”). Transactions took place under
the Brandix Sale of Products Master Agreement for the 2009
Financial Year did not exceed the annual cap of HK$616 million
(2008: HK$363 million).

According to the Listing Rules, Brandix, by virtue of its
shareholding in PT Sri Lanka, a subsidiary of the Company, is a
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and hence
a connected person of the Company. Brandix Group and its
associates are therefore also regarded as connected persons of
the Company.

Sale of Products to PT Sri Lanka

Sale of knitted fabrics and greige fabrics to PT Sri Lanka pursuant
to a master agreement (the “PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master
Agreement”) dated 30 April 2007 between the Company and
PT Sri Lanka. Details of PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master
Agreement are set out in the Prospectus. Transactions took place
under the PT Sri Lanka Sale Products Master Agreement for the
2009 Financial Year did not exceed the annual cap of HK$58
million (2008: HK$43 million).

According to the Listing Rules, PT Sri Lanka is regarded as a
connected person as PT Sri Lanka is an associate of connected
persons as mentioned above.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
A. Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)

(3) Sale of Products to HC Companies

Sale of knitted fabrics to companies in which Mr. Henry Choi
has substantial interest (the “HC Companies”) pursuant to a
master agreement (the “HC Companies Sale of Products Master
Agreement”) dated 30 April 2007 between the Company and the
HC Companies. Details of HC Companies Sale of Products Master
Agreement are set out in the Prospectus. Transactions took place
under the HC Companies Sale Products Master Agreement for the
2009 Financial Year did not exceed the annual cap of HK$22.5

million (2008: HK$19.6 million).

Mr. Henry Choi, who is the son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung (a Director),
is regarded as a connected person of the Company by virtue of
Listing Rule 14A.11(4)(b).

The Directors, including the INED, have reviewed the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions made during the 2009 Financial Year
and confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

1

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(38) in accordance with each of the relevant agreements governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain factual finding procedures
on the above continuing connected transactions for the 2009 Financial
Year (the “Transactions”) on a sample basis in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform
Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
reported their factual findings for the selected samples based on the
agreed procedures to the Board stating that:

—

(

) the Transactions had been approved by the Directors;

(2) the pricing of the Transactions (for the sample selected) were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(8) the Tansactions were entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the Transactions (for the sample selected);
and

(4) the amounts of the Transactions had not exceeded the relevant

caps as disclosed in the Prospectus and the Circular respectively.
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Connected Transactions (Continued)

A. Continuing Connected Transaction (Continued)
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed
above, there were no other transactions which need to be disclosed
as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules and no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 2009
Financial Year or at any time during the 2009 Financial Year.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility and the time devoted to the business of the Group.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established by the Board
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report from page 31 to page 38 of this
annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report, the percentage of the Company’s shares which are in
the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Subsequent Events
The Group had no significant events after the balance sheet date.
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Audi = ZEEm
The financial statements for 2009 Financial Year have been audited by & EF B @ETEIE ST 2 BAZ2009F B L E
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers B Bk - RIERBRFEAFEASBIZEH REE
as auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of — #EIE%% Rk E S EHEIE ST AN A BAZEED o
the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board REE B

Wan Wai Loi FE

CHAIRMAN FER

Hong Kong, 17 July 2009 &S - 20090F7A17H
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The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the 2009
Financial Year. In addition to the CG Code, the Board also observed certain
recommended best practices (“Recommended Best Practices”) contained in
the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to
enhance the corporate governance standards of the Company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. After specific enquiries made by the Company, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for the 2009
Financial Year.

Directors

The Board

The Board currently has 11 members (excluding alternate director) consisting
of 4 executive Directors and 7 non-executive Directors of which 3 are INEDs.
The composition is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. LAM King Man

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung

Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Mr. Vivek KALRA (appointed on 19 May 2008)
(Alternate Director to Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Profile of the Directors is set out on pages 12 to 14 of this annual report and is
updated on the website of the Company.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sales and marketing experience and technical knowledge in fabric business,
administration and management experience in the PRC factories, financial
and accounting skill is appropriate for effective decision making, taking into
account the nature and scope of the business operations and development
of the Group.
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Directors (Continued)

The Board (Continued)

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested to the Board.
The Board is responsible for the formulation of strategic, management and
financial objectives of the Group and ensuring that the interest of shareholders
including those minority shareholders are protected. Daily operations and
administration of the Group are delegated to he executive Directors and the
management.

The Board meets at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are
convened when deemed necessary by Board. The schedule of regular
meetings for the whole year has been informed to each Director. Notices
of Board meeting will be served to all the Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the
Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman. All the Directors are given
the opportunity to include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in
the agenda of the Board meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate background
information and supporting analysis are made available to the Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors
are given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management for further information and enquiries. The Company Secretary
and senior management attends all the meetings of the Board and Board
committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance and
financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the
directors/substantial shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in the
Board meeting. Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on
(nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of any
contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he or
any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
“associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest,
except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting
is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly
made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.

Directors have access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary
and key officers of the Company in relation to the board procedures. Draft
minutes of Board/Board committee meetings recorded in sufficient details
the matters considered by the participants of such meetings and decisions
reached are forwarded to the participants for comments within a reasonable
time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board committee are kept by the Company Secretary, which are
open for inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information
to allow the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary,
with the approval of the Board.
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Directors (Continued)

The Board (Continued)

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and
Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against Directors and management in execution and discharge of their duties
or in relation thereto.

During the 2009 Financial Year, the Board held 5 meetings to approve
interim and final results announcements, interim reports and annual reports,
to consider dividend policy and to discuss significant issues and the general
operation of the Company. The attendance record of the Directors is set out
in the table on page 35 of this annual report.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

To ensure a balance of power an authority, the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer are segregated and not exercised by the same
individual. The Board is headed by the Chairman Mr. Wan Wai Loi, with the
assistance of the Vice Chairman, Mr. Tsang Kang Po and the Chief Executive
Officer is Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

There is a clear segregation between the Chairman’s responsibility and the
Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring that all material
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the management of the daty-to-day
operations of the Group’s business and the implementation of the approved
strategies of the Group. In addition, each executive Director is responsible for
the management of the different functions of the business of the Group.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures all the
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and be
provided with adequate information in a timely manner.

INEDs

During the 2009 Financial Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least
one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgment
on the issues of strategic direction, development, performance and risk
management of the Group. The Company has received an annual written
confirmation from each of the INEDs of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially interfere with
the exercise of their independent judgment. The Board considers that each of
the Non-executive Directors and INEDs brings his/her own relevant expertise
to the Board.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a
Director to fill a casual vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board.
Suitable candidates who are experienced and competent and able to fulfill the
fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence would be recommended
to the Board.
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Directors (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the INEDs) was appointed for
a specific term of 2 years but are subject to retirement by rotation and are
eligible for re-election pursuant to the Articles.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a
casual vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-
appointment at the next following general meeting after appointment. The
appointment of Directors are fixed for a specified term, but at every AGM one-
third of the Directors, including the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Directors appointed by the
Board who are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned above
shall be taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for the
time being but shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-election shall
have their biographical details made available to the shareholders to enable
them to make an informed decision on their re-election. Any appointment,
resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall be timely disclosed to
the shareholders by announcement and shall include in such announcement,
the reasons given by the Director for his resignation.

Responsiblities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the business and
operating activities and development of the Company. Every Director is
required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of the Board
and the material matters of the Company and to serve the Board with such
degree of care and due dilligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

Every newly appointed Director has been provided with comprehensive
and tailored induction of business operation of the Group, including a site
visit of our factory in China on the first occasion of his appointment. A
comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided to each Director and
has been updated. All Directors have be updated and briefed the relevant
changes in legal and regulatory matters to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company and that
they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the applicable laws and
regulations.

The non-executive Directors attended the Board meetings and advised their
opinion on the business strategy of the Company and reviewed the financial
and operation performance of the Group.

INEDs are all or a majority of members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Management Function

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board
for its decision. Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and
participate in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor and
ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies set by the
Board of directors correctly and appropriately.
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Directors (Continued)

Attendance Record at Meetings

The attendance record of Director at the meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee during the
2009 Financial Year are set out in the following table:

Board
£FERH
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wan Wai Loi FERELE 5/5
Mr. Tsang Kang Po LR 5/5
Mr. Lam Wing Tak MRERTR S A 5/5
Dr. Lam King Man MEXIELT 4/5
Non-executive Directors HHTESE
Mr. Choi King Chung BB AE 1/5
Mr. Ip Ping Im S et 5/5
Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James ERREE 4/5*
Mr. Lau Yiu Tong 2RSS E 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHHITEE
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BR¥E S S 5/5
Mr. Ng Ching Wah HBELEE 5/5
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel FEERER 5 A 4/5

* Include the attendance of the alternate director.

Board Committees

The Board has established 3 main Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
each chaired by different INED, to assist the Board for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. The terms of reference setting out the
principles, procedures and arrangements of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are available on the
website of the Company.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and
recommendations at the Board meetings.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are reviewing, overseeing and supervision of the effectiveness
of the Group’s financial reporting process, internal control systems and risk
management.

BEE)

R HERR
Ti’%ﬁﬁlmzooﬁﬁm@ﬁ%%ﬂ BER B
BEBe  FHEEeNRREESSRE 2 HE
S8

Meetings attended /Meetings held
HEEEIEFBRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee

BEREEE  FHEEE - REZES

N/A N/A N/A
N/A 11 2/2
N/A 1/1 2/2
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
4/4 11 2/2
4/4 11 2/2
4/4 1/1 2/2
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee Continued)

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel; Mr.
Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are INEDs). Mr. Sze
Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2009 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee in respect of 2009 Financial Year
included approving the terms of engagement (including the remuneration)
of the external auditor; reviewing the unaudited interim financial information
and interim results announcement for the six months ended 30 September
2008; reviewing the audited annual financial information and final results
announcement for 2009 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group’s
internal audit department and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management and internal control. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee have been reviewed by the Board with reference
to the CG Code. The Audit Committee recommended to the Board on the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external
auditor for the ensuing year and the related resolutions shall be put forth in
the coming AGM. The attendance of the Directors for the Audit Committee
meetings is set out in the table on page 35 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its
cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s
auditor. For 2009 Financial Year, the fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by the Company’s auditor were as follows:

BEEREEE W)

BEREES W)
EREBEYHEANELEE  MEEEER
B e (RS BB ERITES) - Bk
£ ORNETMeHMACERes  AERES
ST o
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fzidEs - Sz REER(BEm:) -
EMEZE2008F9 A308 IE/NE A Z KK EZF
HAB IS B R R R B E A - B EIH 2009 4F B
REELEZEFUYBERREFEEDGH B
MASEBRBET Bz TERFEAEEZ B
ERERGENIELERF RN - BEZEZEEY
BiESECHEERLRBROEETATIMEHE
M- -EBRZEgnEERREINESREZEY
BT BB KESTMBESTALARRITFEZ
SNERZEET  WEBERRERFREASIRES
ik ERHEERZE QR LEIANAF
WEIBA KA °

ERZEQCRABRIEE  BREKAN
@ ARARBZRBENBLEMERE - 5
2009 AR E - AR BIZ RN A AN SR B R (1 A0
ERIIFECRG 2 ERALT

2009 2008

2009F 20084

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Audit Services EZIR 1,730 2,139
Non-audit Services LIRS

— Tax consultation services and — T 7% A ] AR s £
review interim financial information EH P HTBER 780 472

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-audit services
provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded that in their opinion such
services did not affect the independence of the auditor.

During 2009 Financial Year, the Audit Committee met with the external
auditor without the presence of executive Directors and management present
to discuss matters arising from the audit and any matters may be raised by
auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in conjunction with
the auditor, the audited annual financial statements of the Group for the 2009
Financial Year and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group. The Annual Report for the 2009 Financial Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Recommended Best Practice. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession.

The members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel (who are INEDs); Mr. Tsang
Kang Po and Mr. Lam Wing Tak (who are executive Directors). Mr. Ng Ching
Wah is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee met twice during the 2009 Financial Year. The
major work performed by the Nomination Committee in respect of the 2009
Financial Year included assessing the independence of the INEDs and
make recommendation on the appointment of alternate Director to Mr. Ho
Hsiang Ming, James, re-election of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, Mr. Ip Ping Im, Mr.
Lau Yiu Tong and Mr. Ng Ching Wah as the Directors of the Company to be
proposed for shareholders’ approval at the coming AGM. The Group has a
formal and transparent procedure for the appointment of the Directors. The
Nomination Committee makes references to the criteria including professional
knowledge, experience, education background and integrity in nomination of
the Directors. The attendance of the Directors for the Nomination Committee
meetings is set out in the table on page 35 of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to review and determine the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to
Directors and senior management of the Group with reference to the nature
of their work, complexity of the responsibilities and performance. No director is
allowed to take part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel and Mr. Ng Ching Wah (who are INEDs)
and Mr. Lam Wing Tak and Mr. Tsang Kang Po (who are executive Directors).
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the 2009 Financial Year. The
major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2009 Financial
Year included reviewing the remuneration of the Directors with reference
to the remuneration level of directors of comparable listed companies. The
attendance of the Directors for the Remuneration Committee meetings is set
out in the table on page 35 of this annual report.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules are set out in note 25 to the accounts on page 100. The Directors’
fee shall be subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other
emoluments shall from time to time be determined by the Board with
reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities and subject to a review
by the Remuneration Committee.
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Accountancy and Audit

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Company’s
financial statements for 2009 Financial Year which give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group. The Company’s interim report and annual
report are prepared and published in accordance with statutory requirements
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a timely manner required
under the Listing Rules. Directors are provided with adequate information
to enable them to make an informed assessment of financial and other
information on matters for their approval.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibility to the shareholders on the financial statements of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 39 to 40 of this annual
report.

Internal controls

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group. The Company has
from time to time reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems in
order to ensure that they meet with the dynamic and ever changing business
environment.

During the 2009 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control systems, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions, the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and the training programmes and
budget through the Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee with
the assistance of an international independent risk consulting firm.

Communication With Shareholders

Effective Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of continuing communications with
shareholders and strives to ensure the timeliness, completencess and
accuracy of information disclosure to shareholders and to the protection in
the interests of shareholders. The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with
shareholders through general meeting of the Company to communicate with
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and the representative of each
committee have attended the general meeting to answer any questions from
shareholders. As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Group maintains a website, allowing shareholders to access updates on
the Company’s particulars where the Company’s announcements, financial
information and other information are posted.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue. A shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of
proxies to attend and vote in his stead. The notice of AGM was sent to all
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and the
notice of all other general meetings to be sent at least 10 clear business days.

Voting by Poll

The Articles has set out the rights of shareholders and procedures demanding
and conducting a poll on resolutions at general meeting, procedures for
and shareholders’ right to demand a poll have been specified in corporate
communications to shareholders and explained details of such rights at the
commencement of the general meeting of shareholders by the Chairman. As
required by the Listing Rules, all the general meeting will be voted by way of
poll. The results of the poll, if any, are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
LA BB R 2

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BRORMKBEGHMELMH

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 41 to 109, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 17 July 2009
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Financial Information

MBER

Consolidated Income Statement For the year ended 31 March 2009
UMK #zo00053 831 A ILEE

2009 2008
20094 20084
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
iz FET T
Revenue WA 5 4,734,816 4,280,646
Cost of sales HEK AR 24 (4,047,859) (3,5883,759)
Gross profit ER 686,957 696,887
Other revenue E A 23 58,525 57,781
Other gains — net H A as — % 23 1,027 50,712
Distribution and selling expenses SR EERY 24 (149,850) (181,020)
General and administrative expenses — /e R ITER RS 24 (170,580) (170,901)
Operating profit PGy 426,079 453,459
Finance income B 26 16,584 44,351
Finance costs BTG R AR 26 (14,767) (33,283)
Share of profit of associates DAGEE S N A Al 9 1,423 886
Profit before income tax PSR A=A 429,319 465,413
Income tax expense S fif > 27 (48,713) (68,599)
Profit for the year FE=A 380,606 396,814
Attributable to: THATFES
Equity holders of the Company KABIEZZEA 34 376,515 392,093
Minority interests DR 4,091 4,721
380,606 396,814
Earnings per share for profit attributable RATIRAERF A A
to the equity holders of the Company e F = F
during the year 2 BRER
— basic and diluted (HKS) —HEAREE(ET) 28 0.26 0.28
Dividends i 29 214,940 980,610

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Information

MBER

Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2009

EBEEABR noo0oE3As1 A

2009 2008
20094 20084
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
iz FHET Tt
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FEE £ b [ £ b5 AR 4 6 27,931 28,336
Property, plant and equipment M - BB N&E 7 1,499,192 1,522,587
Interest in associates N NI T 9 23,201 15,086
Interest in jointly controlled entities RERIEHI B S 2 s 10 20,141 -
Deferred taxation EER IR 19 - 3,467
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESEE 11 1,760 1,808
1,572,225 1,571,284
Current assets MENEE
Inventories N 12 761,640 993,285
Trade and bills receivables FEWBE TN R Z 4 13 600,116 608,708
Deposits, prepayments and & BNFER
other receivables H fth e Y k8 14 18,289 35,390
Derivative financial instruments TSI A 22 1,596 18,813
Cash and bank balances R & MIRTTAE R 15 1,431,664 1,175,481
2,813,305 2,831,677
Total assets EEAE 4,385,530 4,402,961
EQUITY E
Capital and reserves attributable to RATIEFZEZFEA
equity holders of the Company BihERREE
Share capital A& X 16 1,433 1,433
Reserves (e 17 3,109,533 2,838,332
3,110,966 2,839,765
Minority interests DEIR RS 50,335 46,244
Total equity ST 3,161,301 2,886,009

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Information

MBER

Consolidated Balance Sheet As at 31 March 2009

MEBEEBBR Ho000F3831R
2009 2008
20094 20084
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
iz FET Tt
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Borrowings B’E 18 120,377 393,687
Finance lease obligations B & AE 18 232 871
Deferred taxation TEIEFLTA 19 4,825 =
125,434 394,558
Current liabilities RBARG
Trade and bills payables FERTBR T R R4 20 551,432 611,021
Accruals and others payables FEZTIE B R E M fE{ TR IE 21 239,264 221,792
Borrowings B’y 18 284,258 275,022
Finance lease obligations BhEFHEAIE 18 657 1,462
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIT A 22 61 1,327
Current income tax liabilities REFEH A E 23,123 11,770
1,098,795 1,122,394
Total liabilities BEHE 1,224,229 1,516,952
Total equity and liabilities HERRAas 4,385,530 4,402,961
Net current assets TENE EFE 1,714,510 1,709,283
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERREERE 3,286,735 3,280,567

Approved by the Board of Director on 17 July 2009:

Mr. Wan Wai Loi

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Mr. Tsang Kang Po
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Director
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Financial Information

MBER

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2009
EEAMBR no000E3A31H

2009 2008
20094 20084
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
iz FET Tt
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHERARZILE 8 8 8
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG R 33 2,041,394 1,121,826
Deposits, prepayments and e ENRER
other receivables H A e SR IE 14 292 850
Derivative financial instruments TTEEmIT A 22 392 -
Cash and bank balances R& NIR{T4E% 15 58,181 834,253
2,100,259 1,956,929
Total assets EEAE 2,100,267 1,956,937
EQUITY xS
Share capital A& X 16 1,433 1,433
Reserves i 17 2,092,854 1,882,242
2,094,287 1,883,675
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities RBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE1STFfY /BB A =) 3R IE 33 - 69,435
Accruals and others payables FEEtIE B R H et IE 21 5,980 3,827
Total liabilities B &8z 5,980 73,262
Total equity and liabilities HERRaE 2,100,267 1,956,937
Net current assets REEEFE 2,094,279 1,883,667
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERNRBER 2,094,287 1,883,675

Approved by the Board of Director on 17 July 2009:

Mr. Wan Wai Loi

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 31 March 2009

MEREREBR 2000043731 AILEE

Attributable to equity holders Minority
of the Company interests Total
SRR
KAREREE AR 35 iyt
Share capital Reserves Total
R ffE a5
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 AT AT AT AT THET
(Note 16) (Note 17)
(Hi#16) (Hiit17)
Balance at 1 April 2007 R2007F4 518 2 &8 11 1,440,734 1,440,745 50,748 1,491,493
Profit for the year FEREF - 392,093 392,093 4,721 396,814
Issuance of share capital by global offering  JAZIREE 7 B TRRA 16 358 1,916,194 1,916,552 - 1,916,552
Global offering expenses PHEELH 17 - (120,597) (120,597) - (120,597)
Shares issued by capitalization from R RER
share premium account BRI 16 1,064 (1,064) - - -
Acquisition of additional interest in A=%D BRI
a subsidiary from a minority shareholder HEBARZER 17 - (3,559) (3,559) (9,225) (12,784)
Currency tranglation differences NG - 81,138 81,138 - 81,138
Share-based compensation expenses SR ERENE 16 - 6,533 6,533 - 6,533
Dividends paid EfRE 29 - (873,140) (873,140) - (873,140)
Balance at 31 March 2008 R2008F3H 318 2 &8 1,433 2,838,332 2,839,765 46,244 2,886,009
Balance at 1 April 2008 120084818 2484 1433 2,838,332 2,839,765 46,244 2,386,009
Profit for the year FERET = 376,515 376,515 4,091 380,606
Currency translation differences SNERE =R - 36,253 36,253 - 36,253
Share-based compensation expenses R 16 - 8,891 8,891 - 8,891
2007/08 final dividend 2007/08 RS 29 - (107,470) (107,470) - (107,470)
2008/09 interim dividend 2008/09% £ S 29 = (42,988) (42,988) - (42,988)
Balance at 31 March 2009 20093 F 31 B 2 4544 1,433 3,109,633 3,110,966 50,335 3,161,301

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 March 2009

MEREMER BZ2000%3A831BILEE

2009 2008
20094 20084
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
23 FHET FHT
Cash flow from operating activities REXKECHERE
Cash generated from operations REEREEZES 30(a) 917,447 787,206
Interest paid ERFIE (14,767) (33,283)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EEBHEH (12,901) (41,134)
Overseas tax paid EEREEIN SN (16,523) (25,901)
Net cash generated from operating REXEEEEZ
_activites REFE 873,256 686888
Cash flow from investing activities BETHZ2HERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  WENEE (211,835) (425,436)
Prepayment of leasehold land and FEE 4 b Jo -3 (50 F A
land use rights NG - (5,265)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BEKRE
plant and equipment FT{S30E 30(b) 4,033 14,123
Acquisition of additional interest 2 B S —
in a subsidiary from a minority shareholder  FffB A & 2 % 30(c) - (12,784)
Investment in associates REE N B ZI8E 9 (6,435) -
Investment in jointly controlled entities RERIEHEE 21E 10 (20,141) -
Interest income received B2 A 16,584 44,351
Dividend income A% B e 7 9
Net cash used in investing activities pAZDmACsReFE | (17,787) (385,002)
Net cash inflow before financing activities MEEBRIRSRAFRE 655,469 301,886
Cash flow from financing activities RETHZHERE
Proceeds from issuance of shares BRI PTSFIE
(net of share issue expenses) CFEITRAD ﬁ ) - 1,795,955
Advance from a minority shareholder —Z DB 2 B - 28,786
Net decrease in trust receipt loans ErEBIRE R A F 5 (12,082) (8,090)
New borrowings HEEs 64,820 945,234
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (301,105) (1,215,623)
Repayment of capital element of EEmERSEREZ
finance lease obligations BERED (1,493) (3,611)
Dividends paid EIRRE (150,458) (873,140)
Net cash (used in)/generated from METE(BA) ez
__financing activities Re®@ (400318) 669511
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR € & IH €% (HI1E B & 10/F%8 255,151 971,397
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April MRAB1BRERELEEER 1,146,769 186,445
Foreign exchange adjustment SN IR B R R 16,739 (11,073)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March MNSASIARERIRESEEER 1,418,659 1,146,769
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents ReENRESEEEE 2
Cash and bank balances IRE NIRT1T4E 15(a) 1,431,664 1,175,481
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 18(a) (13,005) (28,712)
1,418,659 1,146,769
The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. et Ty4R & IRk 2 5617 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

General information

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
trading of textile products. Its production bases are primarily located in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Sri Lanka.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of HK dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 17 July 2009.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(@ Amendment and interpretation effective in 2008/2009
In 2008/09, the Group adopted the following interpretations
and amendment to existing standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
which became effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2008:

o The HKAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement”, amendment on reclassification
of financial assets permits reclassification of certain
financial assets out of the held-for-trading and available-
for-sale categories if specified conditions are met. The
related amendment to HKFRS 7, “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”, introduces disclosure requirements
with respect to financial assets reclassified out of the
held-for-trading and available-for-sale categories.
The amendment is effective prospectively from 1 July
2008. This amendment has not had any impact on the
Group’s financial statements, as the Group has not
reclassified any financial assets;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(@ Amendment and interpretation effective in 2008/2009
(Continued)
° HK(FRIC) — Int 11 “HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transactions”, provides guidance on whether
share-based transactions involving treasury shares
or involving group entities (for example, options
over a parent’s shares) should be accounted for as
equity-settled or cash-settled share-based payment
transactions in the stand-alone accounts of the
parent and group companies. The adoption of this
interpretation has not had any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements;

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 “Service Concession Arrangements”
applies to contractual arrangements whereby a private
sector operator participates in the development,
financing, operation and maintenance of infrastructure
for public sector services. The adoption of this
interpretation has not had any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements; and

o HK(FRIC) - Int 14 “HKAS19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
Their Interaction” provides guidance on assessing the
limit in HKAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that
can be recognised as an asset. It also explains how
the pension asset or liability may be affected by a
statutory or contractual minimum funding requirement.
The adoption of this interpretation has not had any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(b)

The following new standards, amendments and
interpretations to the standards have been issued but are not
effective for 2008/2009 and have not been early adopted by
the Group

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009)

HKFRS 1 and Cost of an Investment in a
HKAS 27 Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate (effective for (Amendments)
annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2009)
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Vesting
(Amendment) Conditions and Cancellations (effective

for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2009)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The following new standards, amendments and
interpretations to the standards have been issued but are not
effective for 2008/2009 and have not been early adopted by

(b)

the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 28 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and
HKAS 1

HKAS 39
(Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 9
and HKAS 39

HK(FRIC) - Int 13

Business Combinations (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009)

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009)

Operating Segments (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009)

Presentation of Financial Statements
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2009)

Borrowing Costs (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009)

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009)

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations arising on Liquidation
(effective for annual (Amendments)
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009)

Eligible Hedged Items (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009)

Embedded Derivatives (effective
for annual periods ending on or after 30
June 2009) (Amendments)

Customer Loyalty Programmes
(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2008)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

281

2.2

(b)

The following new standards, amendments and
interpretations to the standards have been issued but are not
effective for 2008/2009 and have not been early adopted by
the Group (Continued)
HK(FRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate (effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2009)

HK(FRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners (effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 July 2009)

HK(FRIC) - Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
(effective for transfers of assets from
customers received on or after 1 July

2009)

The effect that the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS
27 (Revised) will have on the results and financial position
of the Group will depend on the incidence and timing of
business combinations occurring on or after 1 January 2010.
The directors anticipate that the adoption of other new
standards, amendments and interpretations to standards will
not result in a significant impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.

In addition, the HKICPA also published a number of amendments
for the existing standards under its annual improvement project.
These amendments are not expected to have a significant financial
impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31 March.

(@

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(©

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary in the consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains and
losses for the Group that are recorded in the consolidated
income statement. Purchases from minority interests result
in goodwill, being the difference between any consolideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill (net
of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(©

(e

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in investments in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associates
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The
results of associates are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in which the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic activity. The Group’s
interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in
the jointly controlled entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of jointly controlled entities have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments. A
geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of segments operating in
other economic environments.

2.4

Foreign currency translation

@

®)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$”), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘finance income
or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement with ‘other
(losses)/gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in income statement and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(®)

(©

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the available-for-sale reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Leasehold land and land use rights
The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and land use
rights are accounted for as operating leases. They are expensed in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the periods of
the lease or the land use rights, or when there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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FTESHBERME(B)
2.6 Y% BERZE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 4%

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 2% - 4%
Leasehold improvements 20%

Plant and machinery 10% - 20%
Furniture and equipment 12.5% — 25%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Construction in progress represents buildings or leasehold
improvements on which construction work has not been
completed. It is carried at cost which includes construction
expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses.
On completion, construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation is provided
for construction in progress until they are completed and available
for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are charged to the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2

2.8

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, jointly
controlled entities and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Other assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as available-for-sale or
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payment that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as trade and other receivables in
the balance sheet.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently carried at fair value. The fair values of
quoted investments are based on current bid prices. Changes
in the fair value of financial assets classified as available-for-sale
are recognised in equity. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the income statement as gains and losses
from investment securities.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered as indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision or subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised in the
income statement within distribution and selling expenses in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting
are accounted for at fair value through profit and loss. Changes
in the fair value of these derivate instruments are recognized
immediately in income statement.

2.13 Share capital
Shares are classified as equity.

2.14 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.15 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.17 Employee benefits

()

(i)

(i)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

Group companies participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan is a
retirement benefit scheme under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The schemes are generally funded through payments to
insurance companies or state/trustee-administered funds.
The Group pays contributions on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when they
are due.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based compensation (Continued)
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

(iv)  Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liability for bonus plan is expected to be settled within 12
months and is measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when they are settled.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures BEHARRE RS SEEHEERE
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax Zu:HE&EAELEZﬁEJ—L 2 TR AL IR
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value FTETERRRITRE A HASRAEE
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase J/%,E,Jrgﬁg,ﬁ\lj R B P 7 24 1 22 A6 2 P

in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies
relating to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

@)

(®)

(©

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has
delivered products to the customer; the customer has
accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to delivery
of goods and provision of services are recorded as receipts
in advance.

Sub-contracting income
Sub-contracting income is recognized when service is
rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.21 Leases (as the lessee)

@

(®)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance lease balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in current
and non-current borrowings. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.22 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of
an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.

3. Financial Risk Management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including commodities price risk, foreign exchange
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and current operations of the Group, no major hedging activities
other than the use of external forward currency contracts are
undertaken by management. However, the forward currency
contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted
for at fair value through profit and loss.

(@ Market risk
()  Commodities price risk
Most of the raw materials used by the Group are yarn,
dye and other chemical and are subject to market price
risk. The Group has not used any hedging activities to
hedge its exposure to commodities price risk.

At 31 March 2009, if the market price of the yarn had
increased/decreased by 1% with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$19,167,000 (2008: HK$18,962,000)
lower/higher as a result of the change in market price of
yarn.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@ Market risk (Continued)

U

(i

Commodities price risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2009, if the market price of the dye and
other chemical had increased/decreased by 1% with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$3,288,000 (2008:
HK$3,143,000) lower/higher as a result of the change in
market price of dye and other chemical.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to Chinese Renminbi (‘RMB”) and United States dollar
(“US$”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group’s transactions in the PRC are settled
from RMB resources, therefore the foreign exchange
risk is considered to be insignificant. In addition, the
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

As the HK$ is pegged against the US$, the related
foreign exchange risk is considered to be insignificant.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular reviews and
continuously monitoring its foreign exchange exposure.

At 31 March 2009, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 2% (2008: strengthened/weakened by 2%) against
HK$ with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have been HK$224,000 (2008:
HK$9,914,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of net
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of cash
and bank balance and balances with group companies
denominated in HK$.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2009, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 2% (2008: strengthened/weakened by 2%) against
US$ with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have been HK$11,705,000
(2008: HK$8,132,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of cash
and bank balance and balances with group companies
denominated in US$.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for the cash at bank and short-term bank
deposits and borrowings, details of which are disclosed
in Notes 15 and 18 respectively, the Group has no
other significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

Bank deposits and borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Bank deposits
and borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest
rate risk by performing regular review and continually
monitoring its interest rate exposures. The Group has
not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2009, if the market interest rates for bank
deposits had been 50 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s net profit
would have been approximately HK$2,058,000 (2008:
HK$4,359,000) higher/lower.

At 31 March 2009, if the market interest rates for
floating bank borrowing had been 50 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s net profit would have been approximately
HK$2,683,000 (2008: HK$3,995,000) lower/higher.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

®)

(©

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash at bank and short-term bank
deposits with banks and financial institutions and credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables.

At 31 March 2009 and 2008, substantially all the bank
balances and short-term bank deposits as detailed in Note
15 are held in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, Mainland China, Sri Lanka and Macau; all derivative
financial instruments are also entered into with these
financial institutions, which management believes are of high
credit quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount
of credit exposure to any individual financial institution and
management does not expect any losses arising from non-
performance by these financial institutions.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk
with customers. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The credit quality of the customers is
assessed based on its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Normally the Group does not require collateral
from trade debtors. The existing debtors have no significant
defaults in the past. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been
made.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been for
additions of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment,
payment of debts and payment for purchases and
operating expenses. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds generated from
its operations and bank borrowings.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and has available
funding through adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet its working capital requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial
instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of

R IR MR ()

3. BIERERE(E)
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BEBRE R EEE T
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18 B R E B R 45 80 B H BRI 45 4

discounting is not significant. HHE o
()  Group 0 AEE
Within Between 1 Between 2

1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total

15/ 15225 2FFE5E st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBT BT THBT THT

Borrowings ey 284,258 60,068 60,309 404,635

Financial lease obligations REHSRE 657 232 - 889

Trade and bills payables ENRIRERE 551,432 - - 551,432
Accruals and other FERTIEE R E A

payables iNERE] 239,264 - - 239,264

Derivate financial instruments  $T44RIA 61 - - 61

At 31 March 2009 R2009%F3A31H 1,075,672 60,300 60,309 1,196,281

Borrowings BT 275,022 260,992 132,695 668,709

Financial lease obligations REMERE 1,462 756 115 2,333

Trade and bills payables BRRREEER 611,021 = - 611,021
Accruals and other FEETIRE RE A

payables FERZIA 221,792 - - 221,792

Derivate financial instruments TESRTE 1,327 = = 1,327

At 31 March 2008 200843431 H 1,110,624 261,748 132,810 1,505,182
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3. HHEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BHEMREEE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) mEELER(E)
(i)  Company () ARF
Within Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
1R 1ER26E 2ER5E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET T TET
Accruals and other FESTIEE R EAM
payables B FE 5,980 - - 5,980
At 31 March 2009 M2009%3A31H 5,980 - - 5,980
Amounts due to subsidiaries NENGE 69,435 - - 69,435
Accruals and other fEETIRE KA
payables FERT 2R 3,827 - - 3,827
At 31 March 2008 72008%E3 A31H 73,262 - - 73,262
3.2 Fair value estimation 3.2 AFEME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets, AEBEznBerEE(BERE IR
including cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivables 1THEER ~ FEUSAR IR I R4 N HL fth P KUK
and other receivables, and the Group’s current financial liabilities, B)RAEBEZ REcREaE(REREM
including trade and bills payables, other payables and borrowings, BERREE  EMEMNRERER) Z
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. The BR T B R L B A8 B 1 i B H A B AR
nominal value less estimated credit adjustments for financial assets HoXHRA—FRZEREERAR
and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to ZEERGEFHEEARBEREEAT
approximate their fair values. BARE -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-current liabilities, FRALIR 2 BRI - ANEERIERED
including long-term bank loans and loan from a minority BEBEERARTERRLERRE
shareholder approximate their fair values as the impact of SO EEEEEATEEE ©
discounting is not significant.
3.3 Capital risk management 3.3 EREKRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

AEENESERBRRAREAREEE
BIEZE  URABRIEHRER - RRFR
BEMBEREAZNE - WHSRE
ZEAREEINRIEE SR

BT EFRRRAREANGRE - ARERTRE
BRERABRENZREEE - MR
BRET  BITHRHEEEENRK
875 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3.

3.3 Capital risk management (Continued)
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings and
finance lease obligations as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) divided by total assets. The gearing ratios at 31 March 2009
and 2008 were as follows:

3.3 BEXREREE(E)
BEMREZEER @ ARENEREEL
REESTEN o ZH RIGEEEIE (BT
GEEEABRMIMNIERDEE S
RMEHERIE)RABERLEHNE -
2009F E12008F3 A1 HZ EA A&
EREAT -

2009 2008

20094 20084

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FHET FAT

Total borrowings BEE4EE 405,524 671,042

Total assets BEMA 4,385,530 4,402,961

Gearing ratio BREELR 9% 15%
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4. BRETHHETRHER

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial statements
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(@) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives;
actual residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
residual values and therefore depreciation expense in the future
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Continued)

(b)

(¢

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land
and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to
sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to
the income statement.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Provision for impairment of trade, bills and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade, bills and other receivables based on an assessment of
the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the
current market condition, and requires the use of judgements and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision at each balance
sheet date.

e B ERERME®
BRSO R HE (&)

4.

(b)

(c)

(d)

M BERHRE HELHRTHE
AERE

W - BEL&EE  HEL R HE
FARER HER AR Al RE AN BRI (B2
EMHEORBM R R B TRIE © AT
Bl IREREEXTSAEEERE
W EER R HIE R A5t

BREEAREERREZIERELH

BRAEEBENEEERE Z 264 (i)
THEEEZ AT E @S B ERE
& AIRESEAAFERHSEKA
BT EBP B EERAZEERNELE
ZHEBReRERAZRSE ¢ &)
THEREE S RERANTEEEEE
B BEZEReREENREIEE
B RALIE - EEEHHRERFTEAR
BR(BER S RETE AT AR R
BRERER) A EAEE - 1 pEE
BERRITR FTRFIRE - A EE
TSR & BB AR E AR o AT
TBRAIRBREELH 2 BRBEERETE
RILRERBEES) - AlskBRRER
ELRESR L o

FEUERFE

FE 2 I#RFETIZA B EEBET
ZfhAT S ERERT TR M SR
AHE - ZEEATIRRITIRRRER
HEBRUMEER ZBERLREL - &
AIREA R P DR N i T B
1T AL Z TR MAREL -
ERENEEAE B ERTEZEMN
ate

FEWER ~ RIER A MERFIRZRE
e

ANER B E R R R IGRIR 2 AT Bl 72
B 2 RHERE YR - RIEREAE
WORIE 2 R E R - BRART R TIZE R
FREMERAZEETHEARERT
e - 0T BIEH HIE R bR - B2
BN EEAE B BRI HERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4.

&,

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Continued)

(e)

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised as the management of the Group
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
in the period in which such estimates have been changed.

Segment Information

(@)

(b)

(9]

Analysis of sales by category
Sales for the year represent principally income derived from
manufacturing and trading of textile products.

Primary reporting format — business segments

No business segment analysis is shown as more than 90% of the
Group’s principal activity is manufacturing and trading of textile
products.

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
The Group primarily operates in China and Hong Kong.

The Group’s sales by geographical locations are determined by
the final destination where the products are delivered:

VAN
Ny =]

4.

B SRR EE )

ERERHEET R ()

(e)

FRSHRIEER IR

AEBBES EREERGRMAEHR -
RETERSHBEHRAFELEARR
BEEBEIETEE TERAEERER
RZR 5 RATHE o MxFFRRERK
BRENNERE 28 AHEHE
1 BAE A BIRTE 2 B Z FTiS i &
AT IR

EEEERARRERTGNE A 8L
B AR E MR ERE
MR BT TR 1R I B i 2= B 1 2E A 2 IR ST
MIREES T IAMER © WHEFRRR
SfhEt  ARERBTEFL ARG
FRZBLEHAEES TIAER -

7 EPER

(@)

(b)

(¢

BIHERBZ DM
FAHEZTBERRELETHBm -

FEREFR - EBDE
BN AEERBIO% L EEXEB REUE
A o

REHEFN - HEDH
REBT2RTEREBLE

REBIZIEE ) 2 1 E TIAEm R
Z BB DA

2009 2008

20094 20084

HK$’000 HK$000

FET T

China 2 1,299,765 1,050,030
South East Asia HEgs 996,850 1,065,600
Hong Kong &5 864,083 791,989
Sri Lanka B 909,719 710,267
Others Hith 664,399 662,760
4,734,816 4,280,646
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5. Segment Information (Continued)

()

Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

(Continued)

The Group’s assets are located in the following geographical

areas:

RE I HRRMIEE (@)
58

D EPER ()
REREFR - HESIW(E)

(c)

REEZ BERPIATHE

2009 2008
2009F 20084

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

China ] 2,027,962 2,140,217
Hong Kong B 1,733,552 1,694,462
Sri Lanka HEE-R 408,683 401,599
Others HA 215,333 166,683
4,385,530 4,402,961

The Group’s capital expenditure, based on where the assets are

REE 2 EARFISIRE E P BB AN

located, is allocated as follows: K
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHE T FAT
China Fh 188,080 8528853
Hong Kong B8 1,766 1,946
Sri Lanka HEBFR 21,970 102,606
Others Hh 19 41
211,835 456,948
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book value is analysed as

e B ERRME

6. MHELHR T IHERE
REEREE L0 R 305 s AT
HEERORE - HREFESTOT :

follows:
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
At 1 April R4F18 28,336 22,050
Additions NE - 5,265
Amortisation s (772) (564)
Currency translation differences NS BT = B 367 1,585
At 31 March MR3A31H 27,931 28,336
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
In Hong Kong held on: MREBRA
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHNF10E50F 2 A 3,694 3,791
In China held on: RABIRE :
Land use rights of between 10 to 50 years FHAN F1025045F 2 L HufF A 17,409 17,497
In Sri Lanka held on: RETERREFA
Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHNF10250F 2 LY 6,828 7,048
27,931 28,336

Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments for the years
ended 31 March 2008 and 2009 have been included in general and
administrative expenses in the income statements.
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7.

RE I HRRMIEE (@)

Property, Plant and Equipment 7. W% BERRE
Furniture Motor
Construction Leasehold Plant and and vehicles
Buildings  Inprogress improvements  machinery  equipment  and vessel Total
REN%E BER FAR HER
= HRIR %6 e Hfe HeE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
At 31 March 2007 12007535315
Cost AR 379,016 271,039 7,865 1,282,082 130,330 21,794 2,092,076
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (45,971) - (,144)  (750,783) (79927) (13,165)  (894990)
Net book amount RAFE 333,045 271,039 2,721 531,249 50,403 8,629 1,197,086
Year ended 31 March 2008 HZ2008F3531HILEE
Opening net book amount EREEE 333,045 271,039 2,721 531,249 50,403 8,629 1,197,086
Currency translation differences INEBEER 40,290 13,181 = 51,617 3,400 233 108,721
Additions NE 5,823 208,644 - 24,677 13,050 4,754 456,948
Disposals e (3.171) - - (441) (31) (884) (4527)
Depreciation il (20,214) - (1,733) (192,106) (18,645) (2,943) (235,641
Transfers g 185,021 (306,486) - 114,613 6,307 545 -
Closing net book amount FRERFE 540,794 186,378 988 729,609 54,484 10,334 1522,587
At 31 March 2008 7200835314
Cost KA 611,232 186,378 7,864 1,715,240 158,030 23277 2,702,021
Accumulated depreciation 2:E (70,438) - (6,876) (985,631) (108,546 (12943)  (1,179,434)
Net book amount REFE 540,794 186,378 938 729,609 54,484 10,334 1,622,687
Year ended 31 March 2009 EZ2009F 3B 31 AL
Opening net book amount ERAFE 540,79 186,378 988 729,609 54,484 10,334 1522,587
Currency tranglation differences HEREEE 10,368 2,021 - 13,245 841 68 26,543
Adotions RE = 123,430 - 82,585 3,247 2,573 211,83
Disposals & = = = (1,451) (24) - (1475)
Depreciation ik (24,831) - (988) (211,564) (19,467 (3,448) (260,298)
Transfers fiyc 56,477 (147,186) - 70,001 20,167 451 -
Closing net book amount EAETEE 582,808 164,643 - 682,515 59,248 9,978 1,499,192
At 31 March 2009 FA200953A31H
Cost A 679,455 164,643 7,864 1,892,602 183,119 25,565 2,953,148
Accumulated depreciation ZEthE (96,647) - (7.864)  (1,200,987) (123871) (15587)  (1453,956)
Net book amount REFE 582,808 164,643 - 682,515 50,248 9978 1,499,192
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R HRRMIEE (@)

7. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 7. % BERZE®)
Depreciation expense recognised in the income statement is analysed as PR AR 2 TERZITIT ¢
follows:

2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHEIT
Cost of sales SHERA 253,767 228,046
General and administrative expenses —MRITHFA X 6,531 7,595
260,298 235,641

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment pledged
to secure bank facilities of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$92,913,000 (2008: HK$94,881,000).

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are analysed as

AEBERFETREMERZDE  BE
N AR BR E (B %) 492,913,000 7t (2008
£ : 94,881,000/87T) °

REBREBOKEZNE  BERRBIN

follows: W
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T AT
Cost — capitalized finance leases AN — B A TR A 7 B AR 4,922 4,922
Less: accumulated deprecitaion o BRI E (2,456) (1,472)
Net book value M EE 2,466 3,450
Depreciation for the year FRITE 984 886

8. Investments in Subsidiaries 8. MMIEBRARAZIRE

2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&T T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT « HRAA 8 8
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8.

Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
As at 31 March 2009 and 2008, the Company has direct and indirect

interests in the following subsidiaries:

mEMERRMTT @)

RHTB AT ZRE(®)
F20094F H1200843 A31H + AR FR T3
YA R

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid up share Equity interest
establishment/ capital/registered attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital to the Group Principal activities
i/ B/ BETREARZ REEERL
YN Eg BfEihE R/ EMER RS TEEK
2009 2008
20095 20084
Shares held directly:
EEBERS
Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
(Note (i) (#7z2) RERUHS BT REER
Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBETRS BT REER
Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
EREUHE iy REER
Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HKS$1 100% 100% Investment holding
EERUHS BT REER
Solid Ally International Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERUHS BT REER
Lehan Resources Ltd. British Virgin Islands HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RBEIRS BT REER
Fast Right Group Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$1,000 100% 100% Investment holding
IEREEBR A EREUHE 1,000% 7T REER
Goodscore Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - Investment holding
BREARAR EERUHS 17T REER
Shares held indirectly:
BEFERD
Pacific Textiles Limited Hong Kong Hk$103,000,000 100% 100% Textiles trading
BRGBAER R B 103,000,000/ 7T TEmES
Pacific SPM Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
ERAEHRREERAR BB iy REER
Pacific (Nansha) Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$22,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
BAEDEERRAT B 22,000,000/ 7T REER
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8. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

R IR MR ()

8. MM

BREI2RE®)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid up share Equity interest
establishment/ capital/registered attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital to the Group Principal activities
By ag ERIRMEZ AEE L
MEAREME EF B/ EMER RARER TEEK
2009 2008
20095 20084
Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Macau MOP1,030,000 100% 100% Textiles trading
Commercial Offshore Limited P 1,030,000 9% e
ERBIM R R R E RS ER AR
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited Sri Lanka Rs1,597,229,000 60% 60% Textiles manufacturing
(Note (i) (#/22() LELRS 1,597,229,000 and trading
HBEREM TRmEERES
Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited (Note (j)) Mainland China Registered/ 100% 100% Manufacture and sale
X (BEVGHEERER AR ) B At paid up capital of textiles products
US$55,700,000 DREmEE RIHE
SR A
55,700,000% 7T
Pacific/Textured Jersey Ltd. United Kingdom GBP100 100% 100% Fabrics agency
G 100385 ius e
Notes: Higt -

(i) Company established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in Mainland

China.

(i) On 25 January 2008, Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired an additional 8% equity interest
in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$12,784,000. Consequently, the Group’s equity interest
in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited was increased from 52% to 60%.
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9.

Interest in Associates 9.

Movements of share of net assets of associates are as follows:

r:/_\ﬁ

R BRI RE(

REFE QB 2w
&1

&)

fERNREEFEZEHNT

2009 2008

20094 20084

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

At 1 April M4A1H 15,086 18,070
Capital injection (Note) EE (K 6,435 -
Currency translation differences HNEE A = 5 257 1,130
Share of results — profit for the year FE(G¥E —FRNHT 1,423 886
At 31 March MR3H31H 23,201 15,086
Note:  On 14 August 2008, the Group further injected capital HK$6,435,000 Hfat © 2008498 H148 @ AEEYFETIEL

in SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd., in proportionate with other
shareholders’ capital injections into this associate.

The particulars of the associates as at 31 March 2009 and 2008 are set
out as follows:

(BM)REBEMBERMERATE—EE
6,435,000/ 7T + A2 ¥i B2 E th iR R 2 Lt
EEUHEERR] o

R 20094F & 20084 3 A31 HEf& AR Z 515
AT ¢

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid up share Equity interest
establishment/ capital/registered attributable
Name of associate operation capital to the Group Principal activities
/B BRIRERZ AEEEL
HENRER B R/ ERER RAER TEXH
2009 2008
2009F 20084
SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd. Mainland China US$7,500,000 33% 33% Manufacturing and
(Note (i)) Bl 7,500,0003 7T trading of vehicles
IR (BN AEHBERERAR related textile
(B (i) products
BEREEAERE
Afm
Fillattice-Pacific Limited (Note (i) Hong Kong Hk$3,900,000 50% 50% Trading of textiles
ENBRARHE() 90 3,900,000 7T products
Notes: Kt
()  Company established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in Mainland () ZRARARRERBAHKIZHNEEINE R
China. £

(i) On 18 May 2009, Solid Ally International Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in Fillattice-
Pacific Ltd. at a cash consideration of approximately HK$2,200,000.
Consequently, the Group’s equity interest in Fillattice-Pacific Ltd. was
increased from 50% to 100%.

(i)  F2009F5H18H + ARRZEMK B A A
Solid Ally International Ltd. & & 7B R A &)
R T 50% AR - B & {E%)2,200,000
I o Btk - AEBRE BB AR ZKRA
T H50%3I5 INZE100% °
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R HRRMIEE (@)

=N 2

9. Interest in Associates (Continued) 9. REENTZERE)
The Group’s associates did not have any significant capital R2009F3A31H @ ANEE 2 BE AR E
commitments at 31 March 2009 (2008: Nil). BARERHIME (20085 : ) ©
The Group’s share of assets, liabilities and results of associates were as REEEEBES NI ZEE ABERESEN
follows: TS 8
2009 2008
20095 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Total assets BEAE 34,822 22,750
Total liabilities B8R 11,621 7,665
Revenue WA 38,047 23,238
Profit for the year F R Fll 1,423 886
10. Interest in Jointly Controlled Entities 10. AHEZEFIER 2R
Movement of share of net assets of jointly controlled entities are as REREHEREEFEZZIHIT :
follows:
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
At 1 April W4A18 - -
Capital injection (Note) EE(HEE) 20,141 -
At 31 March M3A318 20,141 -

Note:  On 13 March 2009, the Group injected HK$20,141,000 into its jointly
controlled entities as capital contributions.

The Group’s jointly controlled entities did not have any significant capital
commitments at 31 March 2009 (2008: Nil).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in
the jointly controlled entities, and no contingent liabilities of the jointly
controlled entities themselves.
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10. Interest in Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)
The particulars of the jointly controlled entities as at 31 March 2009 and

11.

2008 are set out as follows:

mEMERRMTT @)

10. RAREHER 2Ew(8)

R20094F 200843 531 H LRI 4= EE

RERBIT

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid up share Equity interest
Name of jointly establishment/ capital/registered attributable
controlled entities operation capital to the Group Principal activities
B3V ag BRITRAEZ REEREMN
HEEHER LR EF2 B/ EMER RARR ITEEHK
2009 2008
20095 20084
King Jumbo Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$5,030,000 51% - Investment holding
EBRLEE 5,030,000% T REER
Fortune Joy International Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$100 51% = Investment holding
BRRERRAR RBENHS 100%7T REER
CPAT (Singapore) Private Ltd. Singapore Paid up share capital 42.33% - Investment holding
N US$100,000 RAER
R IR
100,000% 75

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly
controlled entities represented the capital contributions injected by the
Group. These jointly controlled entities have not commenced operations

as at 31 March 2009.

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

R2009F3 A31H » ANEE (LK FZE
HlER s EEFENIEREEBENT
A o 2% R B 5211 2009F3 A31 H

WARBRAELE

1. AJEEEMEE

2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&x FHET
At 1 April R4F18 1,808 1,824
Impairment loss charged to B ARERZ
the income statement REEE (48) (16)
At 31 March MR3A31H 1,760 1,808
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, REBEMZES
at fair value BAFE 19 67
Club debentures, at fair value CHES  BATE 1,741 1,741
1,760 1,808
Maximum exposure to credit risk SAEEERR 1,760 1,808

The fair values of listed equity securities and club debentures are based

on quoted/available market prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

LB EEER DT EVRERR

ERITMEERE °

AL ESREENETIIE
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12.

e B ERRME

Inventories 12. &
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Raw materials Bt 501,778 695,366
Work-in-progress ER 111,629 119,565
Finished goods BUAL Th 103,451 132,923
Consumables JEFEM 44,782 45,431
761,640 993,285

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales during the year amounted to HK$3,605,911,000 (2008:

HK$3,100,806,000).

Inventories pledged as security for the banking facilities available
to the Group amounted to approximately HK$78,000,000 (2008:

13.

AEERRAMAY - Wit ABEREAZTFE
B 7S 53 Bl 4 3,605,911,000 7% 7T (2008 £
3,100,806,000/7T) ©

AEBAERTREFLERZFENR
78,000,000 7 7T (2008 4F : 78,000,000 &

HK$78,000,000). JL) °
Trade and Bills Receivables 13. BWERR KR
2009 2008
20094 20084F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Trade receivables JE W BR TR 480,956 481,130
Bills receivables JEM & 134,046 137,565
615,002 618,695
Less: provision for impairment of R FEWERSR
trade receivables BERHE (14,886) (9,987)
600,116 608,708

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximate their

fair values.

Majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. The
ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables was as follows:

FEMBRR R R iz 2 BRE (B A FEARE -

AEBABDHEZEEHNFI0EC0K
FERSRA R ZIR 2 BRI DA T

2009 2008

20095 20084

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET T

0 - 60 days 0- 60X 510,147 472,098
61— 120 days 61 - 120K 91,444 122,646
Over 120 days HEiE120K 13,411 23,951
615,002 618,695
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2009, trade receivables of HK$14,886,000 (2008:
HK$9,987,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision was
HK$14,886,000 as at 31 March 2009 (2008: HK$9,987,000). The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

mEMERRMTT @)

13. FEWERA R Z5E (48)
MR200943A31H ' BEREZEKER
/14,886,000 /& 7 ( 2008 F : 9,987,000
BT ) o N2009F 3 A 31 H SR A
14,886,000 7 7T ( 2008 £ : 9,987,000 /&
T0) ° ZERBERFZ ERER D HTLAT ¢

2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Past due by: 2
0 - 60 days 0 - 60X - 3,759
61 — 120 days 61 -120K 7,431 843
Over 120 days HiB120K 7,455 5,385
14,886 9,987
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables were as FHEUERRIEL R ER G 2 SBInT
follows:
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHE T FAT
At 1 April ®4A18 9,987 15,000
Provision for impairment of trade receivables U BR FURE B 14,026 =
Write back of provision for impairment of B o] R BR X
trade receivables RERE (4,987) (5,013)
Receivable written off during the year as BHF NEEA
uncollectible Uz Bl BR 3R (4,140) -
At 31 March M3H31H 14,886 9,987

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been
included in distribution and selling expenses in the income statement.
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

HERERIGREFENRIL KBRS AN
BRZDHERHERA - sEABBRP Z
RBERMTERMBFEINRE 2ERT—R

B -
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13. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2009, trade receivables of HK$144,021,000 (2008:
HK$107,415,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

e UBRERME®
13. BYERR KR ZEE (&)

MR20094F3 A31H @ BHEIEREL
JiE Uy BR 2R A 144,021,000 7 7T (2008 4
107,415,000 7T ) B3 T2 = 78 3 30 &%
ZERFSRA M - ZERURR 2 BRiik D47 40

T
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAT

Past due by: 2y

0 - 60 days 0 - 60X 133,203 91,494
61 — 120 days 61 - 120K 10,582 11,659
Over 120 days HiB120K 236 4,262
144,021 107,415

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security.

Trade and bills receivables were denominated in the following
currencies:

RERERH  FAEERRAS LRERFIE
WERKZ A A © AREYN ERA EAIES

ERmIERER

FEMBR R R R IRIR TSR HEHE ¢

2009 2008

20094 20084

HK$°000 HK$000

F&T FAT

HK$ T 279,840 302,933
RMB ARH#E 36,184 16,707
Us$ ETT 208,731 297,827
Others HAih 247 1,228
615,002 618,695
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14. Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables

(a

(b)

RE MR MEE (@)

14. HE - AAFEREMERIE

Group (@ #A£E
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Rental, utility and other deposits e - DERSEEEMIZS 449 464
Prepayments TafIsRIA 8,593 15,628
Tax recoverable AR E R E 8,241 18,406
Other receivables H b pE Y sR I8 1,006 892
18,289 35,390

Deposits, prepayments and other receivalbes were denominated

2e  RNZUAREMREKIER TS

in the following currencies: EHETE -
2009 2008
20095 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
HK$ BT 1,563 2,649
RMB AERHE 6,023 13,995
us$ ET 6,739 12,153
Others HAth 3,964 6,593
18,289 35,390

Company (b) ARH

2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Other receivables E b fE W SR IE 292 850

Other receivables were denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of the receivable balances mentioned above. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.

Hitb U IRFIAETTSIE »

Ze  RNRAEREMRKFIRZ RE

BEEATERE -

REERH  FAEERARA LREK
RBEBHRLZAFE - ARBEYESHE

AR EER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. Cash and Bank Balances

(a)

e BRI )
15. e KRBT

Group (@ A%£E
2009 2008
20094 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFIHERS 1,019,974 303,684
Short-term bank deposits EHEIRITER 411,690 871,797
1,431,664 1,175,481
Maximum exposure to credit risk RAEERE 1,430,977 1,173,895

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 2.7%
(2008: 4.2%) for the year; these deposits have maturities between
1 to 120 days (2008: 1 to 90 days) at inception.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

Cash and bank balances were denominated in the following
currencies:

NEFREIRITEREBRFNERE2.7%
(20084 : 4.2%) : ZEFRNERE
HENTF12=120K (20084 : 1290
K)o

RIRTT 2 IR & AT B IRITIF AR 2%

2
BETE -

R MIRITHEBIRIA T EETIE -

2009 2008

20094 20084

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

HK$ BT 950,737 681,937
RMB AR 102,250 56,840
Us$ ETT 335,061 409,584
Japanese Yen H 2 24,638
Others HAith 43,614 2,482
1,431,664 1,175,481

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB
are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion of
these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland China Government.
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15. Cash and Bank Balances (Continued)

(b)

e AR R MR ()
15. IRERIBITHERE)

Company (b) ZAAF
2009 2008
20094 2008
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&T T
Cash at bank RITIRE 796 25,584
Short-term bank deposits EHISRITIE K 57,385 808,669
58,181 834,253
Maximum exposure to credit risk SAEERR 58,181 834,253

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 2.5%
(2008: 4.1%) for the year; these deposits have maturities between
1 to 90 days (2008: 1 to 90 days) at inception.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

Cash and bank balances were denominated in the following
currencies:

AFEERERITTERERFE 52.5%
(20084 @ 41%) i ZETFARIER
B H AN F1E 90K (20084 = 1290
K)o

RIRTT 2R E AT B IRITIF AR 2%
BETR e

e RRITREBRIRIATERIIE

2009 2008

20094 20084

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FAT

HK$ 7T 1,510 566,523
Us$ ETT 56,671 243,094
Japanese Yen H - 24,636
58,181 834,253

ERHBIZERERAT 2009FE | 085



Financial Information

MBER

16. Share Capital

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 478 B T SR 7R T =% (4)
16. B
Share capital (@ &R
Number of Nominal value
shares of shares
RHER BB EE
HK$’000
Tt
Authorised: JETE °
Shares of HK$0.001 each 2007F4 A1 H

at 1 April 2007 FRXE(EO.001 7T 2 KD 50,000,000 50
Increase in authorised share capital of NI E(E0.001 78 7T Z &%

HK$0.001 each (Note (i) ZIEERA (HiaE) 4,950,000,000 4,950
At 31 March 2008 and 2009 720085 E22009F3 31 H 5,000,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR :

Shares of HK$0.001 each 2007F4 A1 H

at 1 April 2007 BAREE0.0018 T 2 XD 10,747,020 11
Shares issued to the then equity ME R Z AR RRAER

shareholders of the Company A AETER0.00158 7T

credited as fully paid of HK$0.001 Z ANBRFIESS R 2 &5 (AT a2 i)

each (Note (iii) 1,063,954,980 1,064
Shares issued by global offering as U&7 AREITEREE

fully paid of HK$0.001 each (Note (iv)) 0.00178 7T 2 B2 et (K752 (v) 358,234,000 358
At 31 March 2008 and 2009 7A2008F E22009F3H31H 1,432,936,000 1,433

Notes:

)

(i

(i

)

On 27 April 2007, the Company’s authorised share capital was
increased by HK$4,950,000 by the creation of 4,950,000,000 shares
of HK$0.001 each.

Pursuant to the written resolution of shareholders of the Company
passed on 27 April 2007, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) subject to the terms and
conditions therein. The Board of Directors may, under the Share
Option Scheme, grant options to eligible full-time employees,
directors or non-executive directors of the Group. On 18 July 2007,
the Company granted options to 88 eligible full-time employees to
subscribe for a total of 22,820,000 shares of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$5.04 per share.

On 17 May 2007, 1,063,954,980 shares of HK$0.001 each were
allotted and issued to the then equity shareholders of the Company
in proportion to their respective shareholdings, by the capitalisation of
HK$1,063,955 from the share premium account as payment in full of
par value.

On 18 May 2007, the Company completed a global offering of
358,234,000 shares of HK$0.001 each at a price of HK$5.35 per share.
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R2007E4 A27H © AR BEBHIE
4,950,000,000 % & I 1 {8.0.001 7 7T
2B - AR R Z AR A N
4,950,000/ 7T °

(i) RBEARRQFIREFR2007F4 27 BHFE

B—BEERER @ AARIEFNE
AR & ([ FBRRAERT ) - B
E P FTE 2GR R - ARIRAE AR
e EERARAASEEERERE
B8 - EFNFNTESREBER
# o R2007%7 188 » KARIEH
BTSN AEREHRES - UET
[1%5.04 7% T 3R 18 £ 22,820,000 R A A
AR ©

(i)  H2007FE5 17 BIAERGEL I - B

¢ & 3% 17 1,063,954,980 f% & B% E (&
0.001B T2 RNGERFESFEEA -
R R ERF & 2k 1,063,95548 7T
PIEEBURRRD ©

vy M2007F5818H @ ARARINER

5.35/8 7L 75K 2 Bk 34 & 358,234,000%
SR EEO0.001B T2’ -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. Share Capital (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme

The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company on 27 April 2007. On 9 July 2007,
the Board of Directors approved to grant options to 88 eligible
full-time employees on 18 July 2007 to subscribe for a total
of 22,820,000 shares of the Company at an exercise price of
HK$5.04 per share with vesting periods of 3 years. The options
are exercisable from 18 July 2010 to 17 July 2017 (both days
inclusive), and shall expire on 18 July 2017.

mEMERRMTT @)

16. BRA(&)
(b) EERRFESTE

A EST 212 R 2007 44 A 27 HEAR
Al AR B R ERA - 720077 A9
B BZ=RI/ER2007F7 A18H A
B8R EBREH ES R HBEMME « 7]
BITHEEBFRE.04B TRERAT A K
22,820,000/ %1 - BREBEIA=F - I8
FR AR 720107 A18H £20174F7 A
17 (BEEEMRER)(TE » TKH
201757 A18H @ °

Movements in the above share options are as follows: W ZET
Number of
share options
EREHE
Granted on 18 July 2007 R2007F7 A18 B & 22,820,000
Forfeited caisd (590,000)
Balance at 31 March 2008 R2008E3 A31H 2 454k 22,230,000
Balance at 1 April 2008 120084 A1H 2 4k 22,230,000
Forfeited R (1,440,000)
Balance at 31 March 2009 200843 A31H Z &5k 20,790,000

The fair value of the share options granted on 18 July 2007
was determined using the Binomial valuation model. The
fair value determined was approximately HK$27,755,000 of
which approximately HK$8,891,000 was recognised in the
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2009 (2008:
HK$6,533,000). The significant inputs into the valuation model are
as follows:

Share price at the date of grant HK$4.8
Annual risk-free interest rate 4.8%
Expected option life 6 years
Expected volatility 32%
Expected dividend yield 4%
Expected employee exit rate 11%

2007 7 A18 B B % BRI
“IEHETEBEAETEATE - H
NFEL A27,755,000/8 T8 @ & R4
/8,891,000 78 L A & £ 2009 F 3 A
31 B IEFE WK N#ER (2008 F :
6,533,000/ 7T) ° M AZEXHNEER

A :

RIFHE B 2D ERS 4.8 7T
488 [ F | == 4.8%
T8 HRRE AR A R (ok:=
SELENL 32%
LGSR 4%
TERE B AR 11%
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SEMEHRERMT @

17. Reserves 17. #1E
(@) Group (a A*&£EH
Foreign
currency Share-
Share Capital Legal  Statutory translation based Other  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
MRS URGA
ROGE AABE SiRE  AERE fE  ERERE  HtREE  REEN L)
(Note (i) (Notefi))  (Note i) (Note (iv)
ey (W) (e (i)
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000
Fhn Fhn Thn Thn Thn Fhn Thn Thn A
At 1 April 2007 R2007£4A18 177,314 11,299 500 34,902 84,124 = - 113259 1,440,734
Proft attributa to equity ARARRREA
holders of the Company il - - - - - - - 392,098 392,093
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETRE - - - 20403 - - - (20,403) -
Premium from issuance for NEREERAR
share capital by global RinaE
offering (Note (v) Hizy) 1916,194 - - - - - - - 1916194
Global offering expenses PHEETH (120,597 - - - - - - - (120597)
Shares issued by capitaisation ARG BEEAA(Y
from share premium account ~ E{Tik( (1,064) - - - - - - (1,064)
Acquisttion of additional interest DIk RIEE
inasubsidlary romaminortty B ATER
shareholder (Note (i) (W) - - - - - (3559) - (3559)
Currency translation differences  JMEHE£E - - - - 81,138 - - - 81,138
Share-based compensation Ri#e
expenses i = - - - - 6,533 - 6,533
Dividends paid BIRARE (177,314)  (10,299) - - - - - (685927)  (873,140)
At 31 March 2008 H2008£3A31H 1,794,633 1,000 500 56,300 165,262 6,033 (3559) 818,758 2,838,332
Representing: E
Final dividend proposed BaAERe 107470 -
Others £t 1,687,063 818,758
1,794,633 818,768
At 1 April 2008 A200854A1A 1,794,533 1,000 500 56,305 165,262 6,633 (3559) 818,758 2,838,332
Prof attribute to equity AARIERHEA
holders of the Company iyl - - - - - - - 376,515 376,615
Qurrency translation differences  JMEHAEEE - - - - 36,253 - - - 36,253
Share-based compensation RirEe
expenses it - - - - - 8,891 - - 8,891
Dividends paid BiRARS (107,470 = = = = = - (42988) (150468)
At 31 March 2009 2009£3A31H 1,687,063 1,000 500 55,305 201,515 15,424 (3,559) 1,152,285 3,109,533
Representing: R
Final dividend proposed B AHRE - 171952
Others Eitr 1,687,063 980,333
1,687,063 1,162,285
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mEMERRMTT @)

17. Reserves (Continued) 17. REE)
(b) Company (b) AAF
Share-
Share Capital based Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
R #7 A
R RE B BERE RE A @t
(Note (i)
(Hiz20)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THAT THT THT FHT
At 1 April 2007 12007F481H 177,314 10,299 - 1,534 189,147
Profit for the year FRERA - - - 765,169 765,169
Premium from issuance for AR BREEE
share capital by global BIIRMEE
offering (Note (v)) (BEE) 1,916,194 = = = 1,916,194
Global offering expenses SEHBETH (120,597) - - - (120,597)
Shares issued by capitalisation AR &R ERR
from share premium account B BTG (1,064) - - - (1,064)
Share-based compensation it B
expenses SH - - 6,533 - 6,533
Dividends paid BIRATRE (177,314) (10,299) - (685,527) (873,140)
At 31 March 2008 72008F3H31H 1,794,533 = 6,533 81,176 1,882,242
Representing: RN
Final dividend proposed BEAHRE 107,470 -
Others Hith 1,687,063 81,176
1,794,533 81,176
At 1 April 2008 7200854818 1,794,533 — 6,533 81,176 1,882,242
Profit for the year FERA = = = 352,179 352,179
Share-based compensation i 1n B
expenses SH - - 8,891 - 8,891
Dividends paid BIRATRE (107,470) = = (42,988) (150,458)
At 31 March 2009 72009%3H31H 1,687,063 - 15,424 390,367 2,092,854
Representing: KRR
Final dividend proposed R ARHRE - 171,952
Others Hith 1,687,063 218,415
1,687,063 390,367

In accordance with the Companies Law (Revised) of Cayman

Islands, the share premium account is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

RIEFSE S R RE K

BRI AR DIRAE. -

£T) - BRfAE

RAJEARRA

REREZZE DK EE - DARENEER
RBEERBEBER D HNER - SE
H D IRBCE, o
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17. Reserves (Continued)
Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(v)

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
of shares of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in
November 2004 over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange thereof.

In accordance with relevant Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary
incorporated in Macau, Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Commercial
Offshore Limited, is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of its
profit after taxation to legal reserve until the balance of this reserve
reaches a level equivalent to 50% of its capital. As at 31 March 2005,
the appropriation to legal reserve of the subsidiary has reached 50%
of its capital.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiary established and operated in Mainland China is required to
appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) to statutory reserve at a rate of 10%. The statutory reserve is
non-distributable.

Other reserves represent the difference between any consideration
paid to acquire additional interest in a subsidiary from a minority
shareholder and the relevant carrying value of net assets acquired.

On 17 and 18 May 2007, the Company issued a total of 358,234,000
shares with a par value of HK$0.001 each at a price of HK$5.35 per
share and raised an amount of approximately HK$1,916,552,000.
All these shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares. The
Company’s shares commenced trading on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 18 May 2007. The proceeds of the aforementioned
shares, net of listing expenses amounted to approximately
HK$1,795,955,000. The resulting share premium amounted to
approximately HK$1,795,597,000.

18. Borrowings
Borrowings are analysed as follows:

SEMEHRERMT @

17. RE®)
Mt

)

(i)

(i)

(V)

18. (& &
e

BREHEARIZ2004511 A 2 BAR
WHB TS A Bk () 2 E{E AR5
BBETZBAREZ 25 -

REARRMEASE - FRRPIERMK
S 2 B A R B KGN RR P B
RIERRTS AR A A8 H R & % T
HD5%EBAE AR EEXHB
ERESHERNERES0%ALE o B
20053 A31H ' IR EZMEAR]
ARz BB EERAS0% °

BB AMERATARE - AR R
B SL R AR & 2 [ /B /A RIZRHR10% L
T RO RN (EEES
EERE) BB ERTERE - RERE
PAAHEDIK

HAiuf R R — B D SR KE — [
M ARl 2 BEIMER E X 2 E AR
BEREEMUBZEERAE L E
e

R2007E5 17 K188 » KAFIA
F 1% 5.357% LB 1T A £ 358,234,000
REREE0.001 BT 2D » T &
5491,916,552,000% 7T ° FTE %=
BOEZHRZRERNEBRSE
= o AR RRMHR2007F5 18 B 7
BB RAFAIRETEE o LNk L
MERA%K @ FARDABZFIELNE
1,795,955,00078 7 ° A LA =B RR
#9/51,795,597,000/8 7T ©

AT -

2009 2008

20095 20084

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FE T FAT

Bank and other borrowings (Note (a)) RITREMEE (Ait@E) 404,635 668,709
Finance lease obligations (Note (b)) mEMRERE (HEb) 889 2,333
405,524 671,042
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18. Borrowings (Continued)
(@) Bank and other borrowings

e B RRE®
18. {48 (#)

= \n=

(@ WRITRAMEER

2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Non-current JERNER
Long-term bank loans — secured EHRTTE N — BT 12,456 12,051
Long-term bank loans — unsecured RESRITE X — S A 274,510 511,200
Loan from a minority shareholder —Z LB RIRHER
(Note) (B1zE) 59,229 59,229
346,195 582,480
Less: current portion of long-term o RERTTER
bank loans BNEREL 5 (225,818) (188,793)
120,377 393,687
Current BNEA
Current poriton of long-term RERTTEREVEE o
bank loans — secured — B 10,628 9,393
Current portion of long-term RERSRITE KRBV S
bank loans — unsecured — KR 215,190 179,400
Trust receipts loans — secured EEliEER— G 45,435 57,517
Bank overdrafts — secured RITES —BIRA 13,005 28,712
284,258 275,022
Total borrowings B 4a%a 404,635 668,709

Note: In 2007, the loan was borrowed from Linea Clothing (Private) Limited
(“Linea”), 48% minority shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary

Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited.

On 24 August 2007, Brandix Lanka Limited (“Brandix”) became
the 48% minority shareholder of Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)
Limited as a result of the acquisition of 48% shareholding in
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited from Linea. Following the
acquisition, the loan granted by Linea was assigned to Brandix.

Hiat : 72007 - ZEERTIABEA AR
£ B 7 K B 2 7] Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited 48% #& #=
2 L #ii&® Linea Clothing (Private)

Limited ([ Linea | f&H °

2007 £ 8 A 24 H - Brandix Lanka
Limited ([ Brandix |) & [ Linead &
H A Textured Jersey Lanka (Private)
Limited 48% A% # - pX & Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited 48%/%
RELBARR o EZIAWIER - Lineal®
i 2 B 5K H# T-Brandix ©
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(@

SEMEHRERMT @

18. Borrowings (Continued) 18. BE (&)
Bank and other borrowings (Continued) (@) S|RITRHEMEEE)
On 25 January 2008, Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a R2008% 1 A25H @ KRR EK B
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired additional 8% A A]Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings
interest in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited from Brandix. Ltd[mBrandix®E/MN i Textured Jersey
Consequently, the Group’s interest in Textured Jersey Lanka Lanka (Private) Limited 8% # #= °
(Private) Limited was increased from 52% to 60% and Brandix’s It AEE R Textured Jersey Lanka
interest in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited was reduced to (Private) Limited < # & FH52% 1 i1 &
40%. 60% - i Brandix A Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited 2 %58 2> &
40% °
The loan is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment ZEERAEIEE B REETER
terms. H o
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BB ZREETIA TS ER.S(E
following currencies:
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
HK$ BT 274,510 511,200
us$ EW 127,549 154,053
Sri Lankan Rupee (“LKR?) WEMREL ( [Ek] ) 2,576 3,456
404,635 668,709
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as RELERERFRIDT
follows:
2009 2008
20094 20084F
HK$ uUs$ LKR HK$ us$ LKR
B IT EV ELk 7T X ELt
Bank overdrafts RITEX 5.5% 7.3% 24.0% 7% — 8% 3.8% 24.0%
Bank loans RITERK 2.7% 4.7% 8.5% 4.5% 4.5% 8.5%

The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings approximate their fair
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

BRRZFETK - MAARITIEE
ZAREEHEE RN FERE

EEZEHMBLWT

2009 2008

20094 20084

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET T

Wholly repayable within 5 years JARBE NEEEER 404,635 668,709
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18. Borrowings (Continued)

(a

(b)

Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

e B RRE®
8. BE (&)

= \n=

@ RITRAMEEGE)

EEZEFMRNT

2009 2008
20094 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET Tt
Within 1 year 1FERN 284,258 275,022
Between 1 and 2 years 15224 60,068 260,992
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 60,309 132,695
404,635 668,709
Finance lease obligations (b) FMEHERIE
At 31 March 2009, the Group had obligations under finance lease 20093 H31H » AEBMERS
repayable as follows: JERTBRFRADT
2009 2008
20094 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Finance lease liabilities — minimum RERERE &K
lease payments: e -
— Not later than 1 year —TiBiB1F 718 1,675
— Later than 1 year and not —1F%E
later than 5 years TiEBA5F 246 944
964 2,619
Future finance charges of finance leases B &AFE A& 875 H (75) (286)
Present value of finance lease obligations 7t & &&IZIRE 889 2,333
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET AT
The present value of finance lease MERERREY
liabilities is as follows: WEWT :
— Not later than 1 year —THBiE1F 657 1,462
— Later than 1 year and not —14F1&8
later than 5 years TEBIBSF 232 871
889 2. 388

Finance lease obligations are denominated in RMB.

BEHEAETIUARKIIE -
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19. Deferred Taxation
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using the applicable tax rates which are expected to

apply at the time of reversal of the temporary differences.

SEMEHRERMT @

19. IEFEBIIE
EAEFRIRTI L E B 2 A B BRI B O R ]
BERERZHEE2HTE -

The movement in the deferred taxation account is as follows: EIERH IR 2 B80T
2009 2008
20094 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
At 1 April R4A1H 3,467 3,760
Recognised in the income statement U ZRFERR
(Note 27) (Kizt27) (8,256) (293)
Currency realigment BEAE (36) -
At 31 March M3HA31H (4,825) 3,467

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

REE BRI FDEER O F NIRRT
MRBERBEZBEERNT

Deferred tax liabilities: EETHIARIE ¢
Accelerated tax
depreciation and others
DR HTE R TE R H A
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2007 #2007F4 A1 H (750)
Recognised in the income statement RU S RIER (1,143)
At 31 March 2008 7200843 H31H (1.893)
Recognised in the income statement IR EE R TR (5,556)
Currency realignment EEsAE (36)
At 31 March 2009 200953431 H (7,485)
Deferred tax assets: REFIBEE ¢
Provision
&
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 April 2007 200744 B1H 4,510
Recognised in the income statement Rz R IER 850
At 31 March 2008 200843 A31H 5,360
Recognised in the income statement AU R 7R R (2,700)
At 31 March 2009 7200963831 H 2,660
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19. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 19. EEFIE (%)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a B A A ORISR BT 2 BERG BN BT 1B A A
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax B AN EARIE B K - WWRIEFFISHS KA
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal — SRR - RIEFTS T EE S &R 548
authority. The offset amounts are as follows: HiH - EEBIESBENAT
2009 2008
20094 2008%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Deferred tax assets: RIETIREE
— Deferred tax asset to be recovered —HE121E A% ME z
after 12 months FEERRIBEE 2,660 5,360
Deferred tax liabilities: FEHEEE :
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered —BBE12EA BRI 2
after 12 months BIERIA B E (7,485) (1,893)
Net deferred tax (liabilities)/assets EEFRIB(BE) EEFE (4,825) 3,467
20. Trade and Bills Payables 20. BEHERARERE
2009 2008
2009F 2008%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade payables JEATBR K 417,852 432,511
Bills payables B RE 133,580 178,510
551,432 611,021
Trade and bills payables approximate their fair value. FERRRA R Zg 2 BRE (A B HE N TERSE -
The credit period granted by the creditors generally ranges from 30 to ERBT 2 EESH RN F30E60K ©
60 days.
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables was as follows: M BRF N =R 2 BRI D ATAA T -
2009 2008
20094 20084F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
0 — 60 days 0- 60X 453,747 539,578
61 — 120 days 61 -120K 89,916 62,038
Over 120 days HBiE120K 7,769 9,405
551,432 611,021
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20. Trade and Bills Payables (Continued) 20. FENERANERE (&)

Trade and bills payables were denominated in the following currencies: JERTER R R ZIE A T 5§ ETHE -
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
HKS BT 97,785 187,235
RMB ARKEE 81,261 77,795
Us$ E7T 366,432 345,506
Others Hih 5,954 485
551,432 611,021
21. Accruals and Other Payables 21. fEGtIEE REMEMANRIE
(@) Group REE
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T T
Accruals for other operating expenses HEh B Y 2 ESTIEE 126,179 85,765
Provision for staff welfare and other B TR B R H A
related costs IR AN 65,995 88,836
Provision for customer claims = e R B 24,642 26,545
Provision for bonus TEAT B 9,631 13,281
Others H R IE 12,817 7,365
239,264 221,792

Accruals and other payables were denominated in the following

FEEHIE B R A (T RB B T B S e

currencies: & :
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T Tt
HKS$ BIT 54,112 62,472
RMB AR 159,153 141,496
uss$ = 25,706 17,439
Others Hith 293 385
239,264 221,792
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(b)

mEMERRMTT @)

21. Accruals and Other Payables (Continued) . FEFTIE A R EAMEAR
Company (b) ZAATH
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAT
Accruals for other operating expenses H @R Y 2 fEFTIEE 5,973 3,820
Other payables H 5t 508 7 7
5,080 3,827

(GY]

Accruals and other payables were denominated in Hong Kong

FEAHIA B K B fth & 15 SR IR LAJE TT AT

dollar. (ER
22. Derivative Financial Instruments PTESmMIA
Group () #&£E
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Forward foreign exchange contracts RHSMNES A
— held for trading —HEER
— Assets —&E 1,596 18,813
— Liabilities —BE& 61 1,327

(b)

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
exchange contracts at the balance sheet date are
HK$158,000,000 (2008: HK$574,000,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the

fair value of the derivative assets in the balance sheet.

REER - R ZEHIINERKNZ

%35 N4 %8 /5 158,000,00078 7t (2008
£ 1 574,000,000/ 7C) °

RIS R  FERRZ &EEBARE
EHC%TF%E%’%WZMEEE‘EZ’A%Z

B

Company (b) AAHE

2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT

Forward foreign exchange contracts RHEIINES 4

— held for trading —BEEE
— Assets —BE 392 -

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
exchange contracts at the balance sheet date are HK$38,500,000

(2008: Nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of the derivative assets in the balance sheet.

REER - R EHINEE RN 2%

E) o

7

WRERE - EERR

5 /K4 %8 438,500,0007% 7T (20084F :
413{

= R AR

%E’éﬁ?ﬁﬁi‘%WZfﬁiéEZ@ﬂ?

ﬁ
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23. Other Revenue and Gains — Net

SEMEHRERMT @

23. EAWA R s —F

2009 2008
2009F 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Other revenue: ] N
- Sub-contracting income —oBIKA 13,681 19,945
— Sale of residual materials — & FgpE 24,521 23,426
— Dividend income from listed investments — AR E W 7 9
— Sundry income —FIFIRA 20,316 14,401
58,525 57,781
Other gains — net: Hih s —F :
— Derivative financial instruments —THESMITA
— forward foreign exchange contracts — iR BRINES 4 (4,545) 20,857
— New foreign exchange gains — N FE 5,572 29,855
1,027 50,712
24. Expense by Nature 24. BMEMANHE
2009 2008
20094 20084F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHBT T
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - R M ERE
equipment (Note 7) WeE(Hiz7) 260,298 235,641
Amortisation of leasehold land and FAE 44 Je {5 P 4
land use rights (Note 6) By (H26) 772 564
Cost of inventories sold FEHEERAN 3,605,911 3,100,806
Reversal of provision for bad and RIBAREEE (H/77713)
doubtful debts (Note 13) (4,987) (5,013)
Write-off of bad and doubtful debts RERER S 14,177 4,568
Employment costs (Note 25) BB KA (H15t25) 333,439 330,678
Operating lease rental of land and buildings T REFEEHOES 5,475 4,524
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BMEREEZ
equipment (Note 30(b)) Wz (B7a#30()) (2,558) (9,596)
(Reversal)/Provision for slow-moving and B RREFE
obsolete inventories (BEE), Bt (21,963) 14,272
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHESREE
financial assets BUEEE 48 16
Auditor’'s remuneration % SREM BN & 2,400 2,139
Other expenses Hfx 175,277 257,081
Total cost of sales, distribution and SHERA « 58K
selling expenses and general and SHERTE—R K&
administrative expenses TR 4,368,289 3,935,680
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25. Employment Costs (Including Directors’ Emoluments)

R IR RAR MR
25. EERK(BHEESHE)

2009 2008

2009F 20084

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET T

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances TE&  #He - A NOER 325,730 287,274

Termination benefit RERGE B iE 1,410 893
Retirement benefit — defined contribution RIREF — EFR AR

schemes (Note (a)) sHEI(H2EE) (2,933) 10,896

Staff welfare and benefits B TaM & 341 25,082

Share-based compensation expenses RS X i 8,891 6,533

333,439 330,678

(a

Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution schemes

The Company’s subsidiary in Mainland China is a member of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
Government of Mainland China. The Group contributes a certain
percentage of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s employees,
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The
state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,000 per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Group has arranged for its Sri Lanka employees to join
the Employees’ Provident Fund (“EPF”) and Employees’ Trust
Fund (“ETF”). Under these defined contribution plans, the Group
contributes 12% and 3% of the employees’ monthly gross
emoluments to the EPF and ETF, respectively.

(@)

BRANER — ERRAKETE

ARAB R B Z B R R A B AR
JiF P 1677 B 2R B IR AR AR AR AR B 2 X
8 - "EERMNBEAREEELFHEE
TR LAERHER - MREEHZRIN
W EEFR SRS BB 2 —
FRME - BREEZERNFTE AR AR
KEENPAEERKRE °

AEBELZHERBREELMEHIED
BertE([aEestEl)) - %atElAm
BN FEAEEZ FREERE - B
wIEEFTE  AEEREESRESIE
PESIEFIEREZEBBRAZS%E A
MEFEVEH R - AEE REBHF
LA A1,0008 T4 LR - E&EHZ
HIEEFEEE -

AEEERHENERNMERE2MNES
REEFE([AEEFE ) REEER
HEe([BEGRER]D - REZSTEH
TG AEESHREE S AME
B 212% R3%MAER B RES
SREESHRK -
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25. Employment Costs (Including Directors’ Emoluments) 25. EERA(EIFEEEME) (&)

(Continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) ==&
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 March HZE2000F3 A3 AILEE  FEEZ
2009 is set out below: BT -

Employer’s

contribution

Discertionary to retirement
Fees Salaries bonuses scheme Total

BIRGHEIZ
ik e IR TEAL EEMHEHK @5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET TET THET FTHET
Ip Ping Im ik - - - - -
Choi Kin Chung iz - - - - -
Wan Wai Loi FEK 1,500 2,790 2,076 12 6,378
Tsang Kang Po BHER 1,000 2,900 1,474 12 5,386
Lam Wing Tak R 1,000 2,900 2,029 12 5,941
Lam King Man ME 1,000 1,730 1,403 12 4,145
Ho Hsiang Ming, James BEX - - - - -
Lau Yiu Tong 2Rz - - - - -
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael FRAA K 150 - - - 150
Ng Ching Wah hEE 150 - - - 150
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel eSS 150 - - - 150
4,950 10,320 6,982 48 22,300
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 March HZE2008F3A3THILEE  8&EF 2

2008 is set out below: e -

Employer’s

contribution

Discertionary ~ to retirement
Fees Salaries bonuses scheme Total

RRETElZ
Hwe e BYBTEAL EEHR HBEr
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT FHAT FAT FAT TAT
Ip Ping Im K - - _ _ _
Choi Kin Chung g - - - - -
Wan Wai Loi FERK 1,500 2,790 2,222 12 6,524
Tsang Kang Po W 1,000 2,900 2,116 12 6,028
Lam Wing Tak PRERTE 1,000 2,900 1,816 12 5,728
Lam King Man M= 1,000 1,730 1,295 12 4,037
Ho Hsiang Ming, James BEX - - - - -
Lau Yiu Tong 2Rz = = = = =
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael FRAA L 138 - - - 138
Ng Ching Wah fhi5%E 138 - - - 138
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel Bl 138 - - - 138
4,914 10,320 7,449 48 22,731
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25. Employment Costs (Including Directors’ Emoluments)

(Continued)
(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include 4 directors (2008: 4 directors), whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
payable to the remaining 1 individual (2008: 1 individual) are as

(c)

e AR R MR ()
25. EERK (BIEESHE) (®)

hEBREHAL
AEBZAZZRTALTDRIBIELZ
EE(2008%F : 42EE)  HEZHE
BEREFDWNT IR - ERERT1BAL
(2008%F : 1RAL)ZEEINT ¢

follows:
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAT
Basic salaries, housing allowance and EXFe  BEERK
other allowances H A28 2,134 1,426
Discretionary bouses BEFEAL 600 1,230
Retirement benefit — defined contribution  RREF] — ERE 7K
schemes =TE| 12 12
Share-based compensation expenses A& B S 253 134
2,999 2,802

The number of non-directors with emoluments within the following

FEEATZMEEIA TEBER AR

bands:
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t— 3,000,000/8 7T 1 1

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

3,000,001/ 7T~ 3,500,000/ 7T

26. Finance Income and Costs

26. BAFEUR AR R AR

2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T FAT
Finance income: g N
- bank interest income —RITA B A 16,584 44,351
Finance costs: SR NE
— bank loans and overdrafts —RITERKRBEL 14,550 33,098
— finance lease obligations — BB EARIE 217 185
14,767 33,283
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27. FREHIRI

27. Income Tax Expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2008:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

The subsidiary established and operated in Mainland China was subject
to enterprise income tax at the rate of 12%, after a 50% reduction in
accordance with the applicable tax regulations, for the year ended
31 March 2007. On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “new CIT Law”). The new CIT Law standardises the corporate
income tax rate to 25% with effect from 1 January 2008. However,
the subsidiary continues to enjoy a 50% reduction in the corporate
income tax rate in respect of certain portion of its taxable profit up to
31 December 2009 in accordance with the applicable tax regulations
as a result of additional capital injections made in prior years to the
subsidiary.

The subsidiary established and operated in Sri Lanka, Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited, is exempted from income tax on its profits for a
period of 12 years from the first year of commencement of commercial
operations in September 2001.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement
represents:

BTG T8 B F N b T FER T s A%
16.5%(20084F : 17.5% ) {EH #fH -

REZE2007F3A31BILFEE @ 5T RE0%E
g - RARBIA N RS 2 B A RAER
12% T RGN FEFTISH © 1A2007F3 A 16
H X 2BARRERARZEBEE(PEAREM
B EAMEFENFEEMERE]) - B
2008F1 A1H  TEEMSHEABLE
R8s — B25% AT @ 1R IR E A FE
166 - ARATAFEINEERHB AR © %
FI /B A R) A BLEB D FE AR TR FI B AR B 1S R
50% ¥ TS £2009F12 A31H -

BT BB RAK L K A8 & 2 [ B A Rl Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited 5200149 A
‘RABZEEERFEERLT12FH - BEAR
MEDE RN o

RIF AW R R Z IR

2009 2008
20094F 20084F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHEIT

Current income tax BNEAFT1S R
— Hong Kong profits tax —BANEH 29,858 32,182
— Mainland China income tax — B B A3 P S L 10,599 36,112
— Others —Hh - 12
Deferred taxation (Note 19) EEFRE (K1 7719) 8,256 293
48,713 68,599

Note: Included in the Mainland China income tax was approximately
HK$16,111,000 tax refund received in July 2008 in accordance with the
applicable tax regulations as a result of additional capital injections made
in prior years to the subsidiary in Mainland China.
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27. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 27. FTSHiRX(#®)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the MAEEBGRTER AN SN 2 B EIRERAR
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate EERRGEMZ MEFHRERAE 7B HS
applicable to profits of the group companies as follows: BZEZZEWT ¢
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Profit before income tax P % Al g A 429,319 465,413
Tax calculated at weight average domestic ERREEEBR 2
tax rate applicable to profits in DRE 3G 5 R R AT E
the respective places/countries 2R 46,954 63,659
Income not subject to tax BART WS (1,499) (1,346)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TR HIF B 52 3,272 6,262
Others Hth (14) 24
48,713 68,599
The weighted average applicable tax rate was: IEFEEEBRENT ¢
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FE T FAT
Weighted average domestic applicable DNt 75 8 A
tax rate = 10.9% 13.7%
The change in weighted average applicable tax rate above is mainly N E AT R 2 # g+ 2 B 72008
caused by a change in the corporate income tax rate for the PRC F1A1BF BB AR ZEMEHELIR
subsidiary from 1 January 2008. BEp o
28. Earnings Per Share 28. BREF
(@) Basic (a EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit EFREARBFIZAR DR ERTE ARG
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted s A BR G A B BT AR (D ANAE S 39 EET
average number of shares in issue during the year. Ho
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit attributable to equity holders of AAEE=FAA
the Company FE(E A 376,515 392,093
Weighted average number of shares BB TARD hnE
in issue (thousands) FEHE(FR) 1,432,936 1,388,157
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) SRREARZ T (BIRET) 0.26 0.28
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28. Earnings Per Share (Continued)

R IR MR ()

28. BREN (&)

(o) Diluted (b) #H
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted GRS B TH SRR BT D Z hn
average number of shares outstanding to assume conversion of all B2 BRI T A B S B D
dilutive potential shares. The Company has one category of dilutive FTE o« AARE—HEEEERD : B
potential shares: share options. A HE o
As the exercise price of the share options granted by the Company HR AR BREZEREZITEE
was higher than the average market price of the Company’s mREE2009F 3 31 BHIEFER
shares for the year ended 31 March 2009, those outstanding NaElfkm z FETE - R2009F3 A
share options granted which amounted to 20,790,000 shares as at SIHERHEE W RITEZBREZ
31 March 2009 (2008: 22,230,000 shares) have no dilutive effect # B /420,790,000 & J& 17 (2008 F :
on earnings per share in 2009 and diluted earnings per share is 22,230,000/ 817 ) + ¥720094F TR &
therefore the same as basic earnings per share. AN EHETE - At - SREEEF
B RREARREE -
29. Dividends 29. |RE
2009 2008
20094 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Special dividend paid (Note (i) BRI RIS (ATa2(3) = 779,999
Interim paid dividend paid of HK 3 cents BEURFHARE 3l z  HARR B
(2008: HK 6.5 cents) (Note (i) (20084 : /&4 6.50L) (Hfa(i) 42,988 93,141
Proposed final dividend of HK 12 cents FORHAE 200 2 REARR .
(2008: HK 7.5 cents) (Note (i) (20084 : /&4 7.501) (Hfa(i) 171,952 107,470
214,940 980,610

Notes:

(i)

On 26 April 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a
special dividend of approximately HK$780 million payable to the then equity
holders of the Company. The amount was paid on 17 May 2007.

On 19 December 2008, the Board of Directors of the Company declared
an interim dividend of HK 3 cents per share, totalling HK$42,988,000 for
the six months ended 30 September 2008. The amount was paid on 22
January 2009.

On 17 July 2009, the Board of Directors of the Company declared a final
dividend of HK 12 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2009. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earmnings for
the year ending 31 March 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(a

mEMERRMTT @)

30. Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 30. FERERERX
Cash generated from operations (a) REEBFELERS
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET AT
Profit before income tax PR 429,319 465,413
Adjustment for: A&7 A%
Share of profit of associates FEARES A A R F (1,423) (886)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB R&E
equipment e 260,298 235,641
Amortisation of leasehold land and THE +3th J2 + 3 s A
land use rights iy 772 564
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE  mEREEY
and equipment B (2,558) (9,596)
Interest income Bk zs (16,584) (44,351)
Interest expenses e 14,767 33,283
Share-based compensation Rz Bl <& 8,891 6,533
Dividend income [i& B as (7) Q)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHESREE
financial assets VERIEY Ei 48 16
Net fair value losses/(gains) on derivative  $T4 & E T EAFE
financial instruments FEE () 15,951 (9,102)
Unrealised gains on exchange FE 3 =R AR EIR
difference Wiz (7,248) (19,017)
Operating profit before working EEES A2
capital changes R A 702,226 658,489
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories GBERAD, (Em) 231,645 (39,950)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and G S EE
bills receivables WL, (48 n) 8,592 (29,087)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments & - FERTFEOR R E A E
and other receivables HERD 17,101 1
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and FERBRR R
bills payables (R A) /80 (59,589) 146,447
Increase in accruals and other payables — fE=TIE B K L {th & 2R IEIE AN 17,472 51,306
Cash generated from operations ARSI P EE AE IR G 917,447 787,206

(b)

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposals of

(b) REZRERA  HEWE BMEKRKR

property, plant and equipment comprise: B FIRELE
2009 2008
2009F 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHTT
Net book amount (Note 7) BREFE(H2E7) 1,475 4,527
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE  BMEREEZ
and equipment B 2,558 9,596
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WE REE
plant and equipment FriS5k38 4,033 14,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued)  #R & BTSSR FTHIEE (1)
30. Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued) FEHERERE
() Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary from a (c) [ — B HRRILEE — BB A T 2
minority shareholder =
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Net assets attributable to minority interest > 8{ A& B8 &5 FTULES 2
acquired BEFE - 9,225
Excess of consideration over the carrying (B FTUEEH) D SRR
value of the minority interest acquired EmEmEES - 3,559
Purchase consideration settled by cash B4 ZEERE - 12,784
(d) Significant non-cash transactions (d) EXRFREXRH
()  During the year, the Group did not enter into finance lease () TN NEEWLERYE - J“ﬁ?z%
arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment R ET L mERELTH - 1E]
with a total capital value at the inception of the leases (2008: S KR 2 BN 48 1E (2008 4F -
HK$1,832,000). 1,832,000/ 7T) °
(i) At 31 March 2009, the amount of approximately iy 7 2009 3 A 31 H ' g¥
HK$41,440,000 (2008: HK$29,680,000) in respect of ¥ HWMELRZBEEEED
purchase of property, plant and equipment has been 4 41,440,000 /& 7T ( 2008 F
provided for. 29,680,000/ 7T)
31. Contingent Liabilities 31. HEAE

As at 31 March 2009, the Group and the Company had no material
contingent liabilities (2008: Nil).

R2009F3A31H « AEEBEARNFWHEE
AKABARE(20084F : ) o

32. Commitments 32. BARFERIE
(a) Capital commitments () EBEREE

Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but committed not REERARERREEZEARR I

yet incurred is as follows: ™
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT

Properyt, plant and equipment BRI X BRBE Z WE

contracted but not provided for BB K& 97,396 155,211
As at 31 March 2009, the Group had authorised the injection of MR2009F3A31H - AREEHER
capital into a company to be established in Mainland China with —XEBYE=FAEMBERRBEK

an independent third party totalling approximately HK$24,814,000
(RMB21,880,000) to sell surplus steam generated by the Group to
potential users in the vicinity.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group did not have any significant share

of capital commitments of its associates and jointly controlled
entities (2008: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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32. Commitments (Continued) 32. ERFERIE(SE)
(@) Capital commitments (Continued) (@) BAKIEE)
As at 31 March 2009, the Group had total financial commitments 200943 A31H @+ AEEHERZEF
in respect of equity capital and shareholders’ loans to be injected BB 7 B TS A E 458 5243,999,00078
into jointly controlled entities of HK$243,999,000 (2008: Nil). TC AR HEna BRER AR BR B RO & HE
B2 HI ZEEE (20084 : &) o
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REFHNAE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under AREBRE 1 MIEF 2 Al L& 2
non-cancellable operating leases of land and buildings, as follows: LR K RKER S HIBRZENT
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$’'000
F#ET FAT
Not later than 1 year THBIE1F 1,515 2,276
Later than 1 year and not later than BiB1FETEA
5 years 5% 283 644
1,798 2,920
33. Related Party Transactions 33. BRAEALTRS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly WER—F B B EEER S —7 -
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence B — A 2B REERRITEEATE
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties 7 B FEATHE AEREE - WEBEA
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control + AR AR EASE - B R A
or common significant influence. BREE -
The Company has no immediate or ultimate controlling party. NN B4 B B N R AR AR AT o
The following transactions were carried out with related parties: EEBEATHETZZSWT -
(a) Sale of goods () HEER
Continuing FHE
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
A minority shareholder and its related —ZLHRRRHEBEEAT
parites (Note (i) (H13E() 276,900 222,618
A related party (Note (ii)) — BB HEAN T (B a3) 13,607 14,574
290,507 237,192

Goods are sold at prices mutually agreed by both parties.

BRIRETHE < BREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued)  #R & BTSSR FTHIEE (1)

33. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 33. BEEALTRS(H)
(b) Management charges (b) EHEEH
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
A minority shareholder and its related —ZLHBRREREGHEEALT
parites (Note (i) (H1a#0) 281 224
(¢) Rental income (c) WA
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
An associate ik oYNG| 3,831 1,928
(d) Year-end balances (included in trade receivables and trade (d) HE HBERELEZFA AL
payables) arising from sale/purchase of goods: (I FEYBR TR 2 PR BR X))
2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Receivables from related parties W E R A T 5KIE
A minority shareholder and its —ZLERREHEGEEAT
related parites (Note (i) (B17£a)) 28,924 20,316
A related party (Note (i) — 2B EEANT(HE0) 2,053 2,030
30,977 22,346
Payables to related parties FEBREEA LA
A minority shareholder (Note (i) — 2 VEIER (HT20) 281 176
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33.

34.

Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(d) Year-end balances (included in trade receivables and trade
payables) arising from sale/purchase of goods: (Continued)
Notes:

(i) In 2007, Linea was a minority interest shareholder, with 48% equity
interest, of Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited. The related
parties of Linea include its holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

On 24 August 2007, Brandix became a 48% minority shareholder of
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited as a result of the acquisition
of 48% shareholding in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited from
Linea. Following the acquisition, Brandix owned 48% shareholding in
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited.

On 25 January 2008, Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired additional 8% interest in
Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited from Brandix. Consequently,
the Group’s interest in Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited was
increased from 52% to 60% and Brandix’s interest in Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited is 40%. The related parties of Brandix include
its holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

(i) Companies controlled by Mr. Henry Choi Wing Kong, son of Mr.
Choi Kin Chung, a director of the Company, is a related party of the

(d)

e B RRE®
33. AEEALTRE @)

EHE RBEREECFEAER
(FI AW RN B RRAR) © (48

0

720074 - Linea/&Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) LimitedZ > 8if%R -
WA HA48% AR © Lineas B A
TRELIERARRERWB AR °

#2007 £ 8 A 24 H ' Brandix i& if8
[ Linea Y2 B H M Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited 48% f% # -
X ATextured Jersey Lanka (Private)
Limited 48% Rk # D B ER 4% 18
WfE 1% » Brandixi# B Textured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited 48%%# °

M20084F1 A25H  NARIZENE
‘A A)Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings
Ltd. [A) Brandix &8 5 4 B8 Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited 8%##
= o B - ANEERTextured Jersey
Lanka (Private) Limited 2 #£z F52%
#ANZE60% * 1M Brandix 7 Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited < #%&
£40% ° Brandixf @ A TR IEHEE
BARRRZRWBEBAR

MADBEFFRFREZ RTFER
BISE ARG 2 AR BARAEBEA

Company. T o
(e) Key management compensation (e) FEEBASMSE

2009 2008
20094 20084
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET THET
Wages, salaries, bonus and allownances T & - & - 1041 Ko£8L 25,198 23,957

Retirement benefits — defined contribution RAEF] — E G 7K
schemes =TE| 64 63
Share-based compensation expenses R i< 2 253 134
25,515 24,154

() The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders 34.

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately
HK$352,179,000 (2008: HK$765,169,000).

()

FBIT) e

PR R FEAS I 2 F R B ISR © %
BRARERMEE -

EEFA ARGRR
AR BERFTFE ARG BN EHRRAR
#1352,179,0007% 7T (20084 : 765,169,000
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Year ended 31 March

HZE3HMBHLFE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
20094 200845 20074 20065 20054
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FiEx T FHT TR T
Revenue WA 4,734,816 4,280,646 4,203,357 3,363,029 2,922,840
Gross profit £ 686,957 696,887 922,091 802,256 639,461
Profit attributable to: THALEEER
Equity holders of the Company AR AEZREA A 376,515 392,093 555,698 458,855 351,679
Minority interests DYRFEER 4,091 4,721 7,948 10,495 (1,255)
380,606 396,814 563,646 469,350 350,424
Consolidated Balance Sheet REeEEESEBR
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
20094 20085 20074 20065 20054
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FET FET FHET
Non-current assets FERBEE 1,572,225 1,571,284 1,237,790 956,292 854,419
Current assets TEAE 2,813,305 2,831,677 1,803,121 1,398,436 1,230,243
Total assets BERE 4,385,530 4,402,961 3,040,911 2,354,728 2,084,662
Current liabilities REAE 1,098,795 1,122,394 1,132,831 797,514 479,400
Total assets less current liabilites B EZERREBE 3,286,735 3,280,567 1,908,080 1,657,214 1,605,262
Non-current liabilities ETBARE 125,434 394,558 416,587 469,918 81,624
Total equity T 3,161,301 2,886,009 1,491,493 1,087,296 1,523,638
Net current assets mBEEFE 1,714,510 1,709,283 670,290 600,922 750,843
Equity attributable to: THI AT E(ERERS -
Equity holders of the Company A2 AliEzs 458 A 3,110,966 2,839,765 1,440,745 1,044,496 1,519,414
Minority interests DY R 50,335 46,244 50,748 42,800 4,224
3,161,301 2,886,009 1,491,493 1,087,296 1,523,638

110 | Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



Glossary
HAAR

In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’s Report and
Financial Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the following
expressions shall have the following meanings:

“2009 Financial Year”
For the year ended 31 March 2009

“AGM”

Annual general meeting of the Company

“Articles”
The Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from time to time

“Board”
The board of Directors of the Company

“Brandix”
Brandix Lanka Limited, a company with limited liability and incorporated in Sri
Lanka

“CG Code”

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices

“Company”
Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
Cayman lIslands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange

“Directors”
The director(s) of the Company

“Groupu

The Company and its subsidiaries

“INED”

The independent non-executive Directors

“Listing”
Listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007

“Listing Rules”
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

“Model Code”

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

“Prospectus”
The prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2007

“PT Sri Lanka”

Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka

RAFHRA CBILZEEN RS BT EERERIN)
BRIENERBAE - THAEREEUTER

[2009F M |
BE200043A31 A ILERE

[RRBFAE ]
ARFZRRBFAR

[E24A1
ARRREHET 2 A TA S SR AR

(255
AATZEER

[ Brandix |
Brandix Lanka Limited © —fE7EHT B8R 5EM AL
ZBRAF

[{EEERTA

CEERHRTA
[Ana] ]
EAGBZERARAT - —HRAEEESEMRR

T2 EREGERAT - HBRORBRA L
[E% ]
ARRAZEE

[A&EHE |
ARARHAMBAT

(B FHITES |
ARTBLIRITES

=
AN RPN R 2007 555 A 18 B R B BT E 7

[ EmRa] ]
B FTRE % ETRAY

[ 8 ]
EHARE TSR HERETA

[ERER ]
ARFR200745 A70 2 BRER

[PTETERS ]

Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited © —E1R
BETEEREEFEMKZZ BRAR]
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“SFO”

The Securities and Futures Ordinance

“Shares”
Shares issued by the Company, with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each

“Share Option Scheme”
The share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to the written
resolutions of the Shareholders of the Company passed on 27 April 2007

“Stock Exchange”
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
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